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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are projections in respect of future events or the Company’s
future financial performance. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,”
“anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. Forward-looking
statements made in an annual report on Form 10-K are based upon estimates and assumptions made by us or our officers that, although believed to be reasonable,
are subject to certain known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially and adversely as compared to those
contemplated or implied by these forward-looking statements.

2 LEINT3

All forward-looking statements involve risks, assumptions and uncertainties. These statements are only predictions and involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors, including the risks in the section entitled “Risk Factors” set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2017, any of which may cause our company’s or our industry’s actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from
any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These risks may cause the
Company’s or its industry’s actual results, levels of activity or performance to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity or performance
expressed or implied by these forward looking statements.

Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, it cannot guarantee future results, levels of
activity or performance. Except as required by applicable law, including the securities laws of the United States, the Company does not intend to update any of the
forward-looking statements to conform these statements to actual results.

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and unless otherwise indicated, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “New Age,” or the “Company” refer to New Age
Beverages Corporation. Unless otherwise specified, all dollar amounts are expressed in United States dollars.

New Age Beverages Corporation , the New Age logo and other trademarks or service marks of New Age appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are the
property of New Age Beverages Corporation or its subsidiaries. Trade names, trademarks and service marks of other companies appearing in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K are the property of their respective holders.




Overview

We are a Colorado-based healthy beverage company engaged in the development and commercialization of a portfolio of organic, natural and other better-for-you
healthy beverages. We market a full portfolio of Ready-to-Drink (“RTD”) better-for-you beverages including competitive offerings in the kombucha, tea, coffee,
functional waters, relaxation drinks, energy drinks, rehydrating beverages, and functional medical beverage segments. We differentiate our brands through superior
functional performance characteristics and ingredients and offer products that are 100% organic and natural, with no high-fructose corn syrup (“HFCS”), no-
genetically modified organisms (“GMOs”), no preservatives, and only natural flavors, fruits, and ingredients. We rank as the 58th largest non-alcoholic beverage
company in the world, one of largest healthy beverage companies, and the fastest growing according to Beverage Industry Magazine annual rankings and Markets
and Markets. Our goal is to become the world’s leading healthy beverage company, with leading brands for consumers, leading growth for retailers and
distributors, and leading return on investment for shareholders. Our target market is health conscious consumers, who are becoming more interested and better
educated on what is included in their diets, causing them to shift away from less healthy options such as carbonated soft drinks or other high caloric beverages and
towards alternative beverages choices. Consumer awareness of the benefits of healthier lifestyles and the availability of heathier beverages is rapidly accelerating
worldwide, and New Age is capitalizing on that shift.

Corporate History

New Age Beverages Corporation was formed under the laws of the State of Washington on April 26, 2010, under the name American Brewing Company, Inc.
(“American Brewing”).

On April 1, 2015, American Brewing acquired the assets of B&R Liquid Adventure, which included the brand, Bicha Live Kombucha. Prior to acquiring the
Bucha Live Kombucha brand and business, we were a craft brewery operation. In April 2016, new management assumed daily operation of the business, and began
the implementation of a new vision for the Company. In May 2016 we changed our name to Bucha, Inc. (“Bucha”), and then on June 30, 2016, we acquired the
combined assets of “Xing” including Xing Beverage, LLC, New Age Beverages, LLC, Aspen Pure, LLC, and New Age Properties. We then shut down all
California operations where Blicha was based, relocated the Company’s operational headquarters to Denver, Colorado, and changed our name to New Age
Beverages Corporation. On October 1, 2016, we then sold American Brewing including their brewery, brewery assets and its related liabilities to focus exclusively
on the healthy beverages. We recognized the sale of our brewery and brewery operations as a discontinued operation beginning in the third quarter of 2016, and
ultimately concluded the transaction in February 2017. In February 2017, we uplisted onto The NASDAQ Capital Market. In March 2017, we acquired the assets
of Maverick Brands, including their brand Coco-Libre. In June 2017, we acquired the assets of Premier Micronutrient Corporation (“PMC”), and also completed
the acquisition of the Marley Beverage Company (“Marley”) including the brand licensing rights to all Marley brand ready to drink beverages.

We have three wholly-owned subsidiaries, NABC, Inc., NABC Properties, LLC (NABC Properties”), and New Age Health Sciences. NABC, Inc. is our Colorado-
based operating company that consolidates performance and financial results of our divisions. NABC Properties incorporates all our buildings and warehouses, and
New Age Health Sciences includes all our patents, and the operating performance in the medical and hospital channels.

Principal products

Our core business is to develop, market, sell and distribute healthy ready-to-drink beverages. The beverage industry comprises $870 Billion in annual revenue
according to Euromonitor and Booz & Company and is highly competitive with three to four major multibillion dollar multinationals that dominate the sector. We
compete by differentiating our brands as healthier and better-for-you alternatives that are natural, organic, and/or have no artificial ingredients or sweeteners. Our
brands include Xing, Aspen Pure, Marely, Bucha Live Kombucha, PediaAde, Coco-Libre, Bio-Shield, and ‘n-Hanced, all competing in the existing growth and
newly emerging dynamic growth segments of the beverage industry.

Xing

Xing is an all-natural, non-GMO, non-HFCS brand that encompasses XingTea, XingEnergy, Xing Craft Brew Collection Tea, and Xing Craft Collection
Lemonades.




XingTea is an all-natural, non-GMO, non-HFCS, and award winning, ready-to-drink tea. XingTea won first place in the North American tea competition over 250
other brands, and recently won bronze in the Global Tea Competition in 2017. Xing is made with brewed green and black teas, and is further differentiated with
unique natural fruit flavors, with no preservatives, GMOs or HFCS. Sweetened with only honey and pure cane sugar and significantly lower in sugar and calories
than other major competitors, XingTea comes in a range of natural sweetened and unsweetened flavors in 23.5 oz cans, 16 oz Pet bottles, 12 0z cans and gallon jug
packages, and is produced in New Age’s network of manufacturers across the United States.

XingTea is sold in 50 states and 10 countries, but was predominately sold in 7 Western states until recently. The brand gained its first national retail distribution in
late 2017 gaining placement in 7 Eleven, CVS, and other major retailers with plans to fully roll out through these chains in the early 2018. The brand is now
available nationwide across multiple channels of distribution from traditional grocery to health food and specialty outlets to hypermarkets to club stores, to
pharmacy and drug outlets, to gas and convenience outlets. XingTea competes in the RTD Tea category that according to Euromonitor International exceeded $50
Billion in annual revenue with a CAGR of 10.9% since 2012.

Xing Craft Brew Collection Tea

Xing Craft Brew Collection Tea is a 100% organic, premium brewed line of artisanal teas sold in 16 oz glass bottles with no added sugar and no artificial flavors.
Xing Craft Collection comes in five trending flavor combinations including Hibiscus Honey Blossom, Ginger Georgia Peach, Japanese Mountain Green, and
Madagascar Vanilla Chai.

The premium brewed tea segment has emerged over the past two years defined by brands from major competitors including Gold Peak, Pure Leaf, Teavana and
others in 16 oz packaging and priced at $1.89 to $2.29 in major grocery and convenience retail. Unlike competitors that have more than 21 grams of added sugar,
Xing Craft has no added sugar, and is an artisanal brewed team made with single origin grown tea blends. The sub segment is estimated to comprise more than $2
billion in revenue according to Nielsen, Spins, and Markets and Markets, with gross margins significantly more attractive than the more price driven large format
can tea segment.

Xing Craft Collection Lemonade

Xing Craft Collection Lemonade is a 100% organic, premium line of lemonades with coconut water sold in 16 oz glass bottles with lower sugar and no artificial
flavors. Xing Craft Collection Lemonades comes in both sparkling and still varieties in classic and trending flavor profiles including Sparkling Strawberry Lemon,
Sparkling Lemon Passion, Lemon Guava Mango, Lemon Strawberry Kiwi and some exclusive flavors for major retail partners in both sparkling and regular
lemonade, coconut water and exotic fruit combinations.

The premium lemonade segment has grown over the past five years to become a year-round staple and has been defined by brands from major competitors
including Hubert’s, Santa Clara, Calypso, and others in 16-20 oz packaging and priced at $1.99 to $2.99 in major grocery and convenience retail. Unlike
competitors that have more than 40 grams of added sugar, Xing Craft has significantly lower sugar, and is made with all-natural fruits and flavors from some of the
most exotic locations on the planet. The segment of RTD Lemonade is estimated to comprise more than $980 million in revenue in the US, with 6.4% annual
growth according to Hexa and the IBIS world industry report

XingEnergy

XingEnergy is an all-natural, non-GMO, non-HFCS, vitamin-enriched, better-for-you energy drink, made with all-natural fruit flavors and contains the full
recommended daily allowance of B-Complex vitamins. XingEnergy is offered in limited distribution, as the energy drinks segment is dominated by a few key
players and the segment overall is one of significant competitive intensity.

XingEnergy comes in four flavors including Tangerine Dream, Grape Attack, Mad Melon, and Grapefruit Go packaged in 16 oz cans, sold individually.
XingEnergy competes in the energy drinks category, and according to Grandview Research and Research and Markets, the global energy drink market size was
$49.9 Billion with a CAGR of 9.8% since 2012.

Aspen Pure PH and Aspen Pure Probiotic

Aspen Pure PH is a naturally PH-balanced, artesian-well sourced water from the Colorado Rocky Mountains, and Aspen Pure Probiotic has more than 12 different
probiotic strains and more than 10 billion CFU’s (colony forming units (probiotics)) in every serving with 2 years of shelf-life.




Aspen Pure has no added minerals or electrolytes and comes out of the ground at a natural PH-balanced level of up to 7.0. Aspen Pure is then purified and bottled
at the source in New Age’s own manufacturing facilities. Aspen Pure is commercialized primarily in a 5 state area in and around the Company’s home Colorado
market. There are no current plans to expand or invest in it beyond its current distribution as the premium bottled water segment is a highly competitive, expensive,
and broadly undifferentiated segment in which to compete. Aspen Pure Probiotic however is highly differentiated. As such, the product has expanded to key
regional retailers on both the East and West coasts, a major convenience retailer in Canada, and a major national grocery retailer in the United States. Aspen Pure
competes in the premium bottled water category. According to Transparency International, global bottled water sales reached $198 Billion in 2017 and experienced
a compound annual growth rate 6.4%

Bucha Live Kombucha

Bucha Live Kombucha (“Bucha”) is a certified-organic, all-natural, non-GMO, non-HFCS, fermented Kombucha tea with more than two billion CFU’s in every
serving.

Bucha is produced with a unique and proprietary manufacturing process that eliminates the common vinegary aftertaste associated with many other Kombucha’s
and provides the brand with an industry leading twelve-month shelf life as compared to the typical 90-day shelf life of our competitors’ products. The production
process also leads to consistency and stability with no risk of secondary fermentation, secondary alcohol production, incremental sugar production or over-
carbonation, and is one of the world’s first Kombucha’s that is shelf-stable (no refrigeration required) with no degradation to flavor or the probiotics organisms in
every serving.

Bucha is made from black teas, proprietary kombucha culture and probiotics, unique yeast strains and cultures, and all-natural organic fruits and flavors. Bucha
comes in five flavors including Raspberry Pomegranate, Blood Orange, Guava Mango, Grapefruit Sage, and Yuzu Lemon packaged in 16 oz glass bottles. The
brand is sold at major grocery retail across the United States and Canada. Because Biicha is shelf stable and has 12 months of shelf life, the brand has recently been
able to expand internationally and to major convenience retail. The Kombucha category is the fastest growing segment in the beverage industry with CAGR of
41% since 2012 and annual revenues of $1.48 Billion according to Zion Market Research and Beverage Industry Magazine.

Coco-Libre
Coco-Libre is an organic, 100% coconut water produced at the source. The brand is one of the top 5 brands in the coconut water category and the leading brand in
multi-serve sizes. Coco-Libre is distributed in more than 15,000 outlets throughout the United States and Canada, and has excellent presence in the natural channel.

The brand comes in 1 liter sizes, 330 ml tetra-pak, and 500 ml cans in both regular and natural fruit flavored varieties.

In late 2017, we switched Coco-Libre from being produced from concentrate in the US, to being produced at the source from 100% organic pure coconut water.
With this shift, we gained some significant benefits including:

1) A more preferred consumer proposition “not from concentrate”

2) Significantly improved flavor profile resulting from the young coastal coconut base

3) Lower cost of goods sold by more than 30%

4) New more preferred consumer packaging options differentiated vs. other’s tetra-paks
Coco-Libre competes in the approximately $2.5 billion coconut water category that has experienced a compound annual growth rate of over 20% over the past 5
years, and is the second fastest growth segment in the non-alcoholic beverage category according to Beverage Business Insights.
Coco-Libre Sparkling
Coco-Libre Sparkling was launched in December 2017 and has already gained 6,897 points of distribution in 1,919 outlets. The product is produced at the source,
is made with only pure young coastal coconut water and natural fruits, and contains no added sugar. The brand has 30 to 40 calories total depending on the variety

and comes Coconut Lime, Coastal Coconut, Coconut Mangosteen Passion, Coconut Watermelon, and Coconut Peach Pear flavor combinations.

Coco-Libre Sparkling sources revenue from other sparkling waters, which is a large fast growing segment, and from other still coconut waters. The brand has the
lightness and crispness of a sparkling water, but is produced from coconut water instead of municipal tap water like other leading sparkling water brands.

Coco-Libre Protein

Coco-Libre Protein competes in the meal replacement category, one of the fast emerging segments in the non-alcoholic beverage category. Coco-Libre Protein is
being redeveloped to become a complete meal replacement, vs. its historic coconut water with merely added protein.

According to Statista, the meal replacement segment is estimated to be $3.7 billion in annual revenue with a CAGR of 7.1% since 2011.




Marley

New Age acquired the Marley RTD beverage franchise including the brands Marley One Drop and Marley Mellow Mood in June of 2017, following entry into a
management agreement in October of 2016 to lead the Sales, Marketing and Distribution of the Marley Beverage Company. Following the acquisition, New Age
owns the licensing rights in perpetuity to the Marley Brand of RTD beverages and provides an annual licensing fee as a percent of sales to the Marley family. The
Marley brand is a globally relevant lifestyle brand with excellent social media presence, enjoying more than 72 million loyal Facebook followers and loyal Marley
fans.

Marley yerba Mate

Organic Marley Mate was launched in November 2017, exclusively with a major convenience store chain initially across three of their divisions. Marley Mate is a
tea/coffee/natural energy drink hybrid that has the taste of a tea, the uplifting benefits of coffee or an energy drink, but without any crash and without any of the
increasingly negatively viewed ingredients in energy drinks. The brand is organic, very clean label with only Marley Mate 30-40 calories, and has quickly become
the number two player nationally in the category, despite being in limited distribution.

Marley Mate comes in four flavors including Be Jammin Berry, One Love Lemon, Jamaican Me Mango, and Ya Mon Mint. The brand has met with excellent early
success in its initial markets since launch, outselling major competitors in each of its initial launch markets.

Marley Mate competes in the rapidly emerging yerba mate segment of the tea/coffee/energy drink category. The segment is estimated to be around $300 million in
revenue.

Marley Cold Brew

Marley Cold Brew was developed in late 2017, harmonized with the rest of the new Marley branding family, gained commitment for national distribution with a
major convenience channel customer, and is expanding in full launch in Q2 2018. The segment at retail is very new with retailers still learning about pull through
rates and sustainable consumer demand. The segment however has been growing at the expense of other high caloric Frappuccino-type beverages, and
differentiates with more real and less acidic or bitter taste that a regular RTD coffee.

Cold Brew as a segment has grown 580% from 2011 to 2016 to comprise a significant growth part of the $55billion global RTD coffee market according to Mintel.
Marley One Drop

Marley One Drop is a RTD coffee made with Premium Jamaican Blue Mountain Coffee, and unlike competitive RTD coffees contains no artificial ingredients, no
HFCS, no preservatives, no GMO’s, and is kosher certified. The brand comes in 11 oz slim cans and in four flavors including Mocha, Vanilla, Swirl and Banana
Split.

Marley One Drop coffee is distributed in more than 5,000 outlets throughout the United States and Canada, and has an initial presence in 7 international markets in
Western Europe, Latin America and the Caribbean.

Marley One Drop competes in the approximately $55 billion Global RTD coffee market, which has experienced a compound annual growth rate over the past five
years of just over 10%. Marley is one of the top 5 brands in the category in North America, and the Marley franchise has global relevance with more than 74
million Facebook followers.

Marley Mellow Mood

Marley Mellow Mood is a RTD relaxation drink that sources revenue from the RTD Tea category. Marley Mellow Mood is made with Valerian Root,
Chamomile, and other natural herbs and ingredients and unlike competitive RTD Tea’s is all natural, has no HFCS, no preservatives, no GMO’s, and is kosher
certified. The brand comes in 15.5 oz. cans in five flavors including Peach Raspberry, Bartlett Pear, Raspberry Lemonade, and Honey Green Tea. Marley Mellow
Mood recently won silver in the 2017 Global Tea Championships and capitalizes on consumer trends to lower sugar, natural, and healthier alternatives.




Marley Mellow Mood relaxation drinks compete in the approximately $50 billion Global RTD tea market, which has experienced a compound annual growth rate
over the past five years of just under 10%. Marley is the leading relaxation drink, which is a developing sub-segment of the RTD category.

Marley Mellow Mood ® relaxation drinks are distributed in more than 10,000 outlets throughout the United States and Canada, and has an initial presence in 7
international markets in Western Europe, Latin America and the Caribbean.

New Age Health Sciences Division

We established our Health Sciences Division in the third quarter of 2017, as a separate standalone company and wholly-owned subsidiary after the acquisition of
the Premier Micronutrient Corporation. The acquisition came with 11 patents that have since been added to, now totaling 13, on which significant cooperative
research studies and human and animal trials have been completed. The patents and human need states that are addressed by the technologies were all developed in
partnership with and funded by the U.S. government, with more than $30 million invested by them. New Age now owns all the intellectual property, significantly
differentiating it from other beverage companies. Our intention is to convert the patents into products, with direct functionality in protection, treatment, or
improvement of different consumer need states.

We have decided to pursue four main areas of focus where we believe we have the most robust science and patent protection on which we intend to commercialize
products including Rehydration/Recovery, Radiation protection, Neural Protection/Improvement, and Cardiovascular health. We also intend to either license or
outsource any patent we do not intend to commercialize. The Company believes that the intellectual property portfolio is of substantial value to either
pharmaceutical or beverage companies, given the quality and uniqueness of the patents, and the science and evidence on the efficacy of the technologies.

‘nHanced

‘nHanced is our first product that was developed by the medical and scientific team at New Age Health Sciences. ‘nHanced delivers a first of its kind, product
which is specifically designed to improve patient outcomes after surgery. It is an all-natural, clear carbohydrate beverage for use up to two hours prior to surgery
patients and hospital systems adopting ERAS surgical protocols. The product utilizes the same superior carbohydrate source that we use in our Coco-libre coconut
water, includes key vitamins and mineral co-factors for immune support, and provides antioxidants, amino acids and phytonutrients for improved metabolic
function.

New Age has the insight that a preoperative carbohydrate dose with specific fluid volume has multiple health benefits for a person undergoing surgery. This
insight, coupled our data on the positive benefits of micronutrients, led to the formulation of ‘nHanced to provide facilitate recovery after surgery. with less
inflammatory response, less nausea, reduced gastric stress, increased GI motility, less insulin resistance, improved wound healing and immune function, and
overall improved patient satisfaction. Initial patient testing has validated the benefits.

Bio-Shield

“Bio-Shield” is the current working brand name for our radiation protection product. We believe that we own the patents to the only product in the world proven to
protect the body from the effects of ionizing radiation, and have the trails and research studies validating the efficacy of our product. lonizing radiation, which
comes from a number of sources, including near proximity to sun, nuclear facilities, medical X-rays or scans, affect the body by breaking the double strands of
DNA inside the body. New Age’s product has proven to protect double-strand DNA from breaking from the impact of radiation.

We intend to launch “Bio-Shield” in Asia Pacific in 2018, and thereafter expect to other markets and channels including both the travel and medical channels.
‘nHanced addresses a market segment size of more than 320 million surgeries a year, 25% of which are associated with complications.

PediaAde

PediaAde was developed in the fourth quarter of 2017 and tested in limited distribution. Full expansion is expected in 2018 in key grocery and pharmacy outlets in
the U.S. We believe PediaAde delivers superior rehydration to competitive rehydration products, due in part to production using the same superior carbohydrate

and electrolyte source found in our Coco-Libre brand. PediaAde has only 25 total calories, is all-natural, and has no harmful ingredients, like red dye #40 and
others found in competitors.




Competitive Strengths

New Age has five components of differentiation that distinguishes it from other companies competing in the beverage industry:

1Y)

2)

3)

4)

5)

New Age has a unique business platform with its own Direct Store Delivery ("DSD") distribution. This platform enables the Company to have the
infrastructure and resources to operate a profitable beverage business. Most if not all beverage companies under $100 million in scale struggle because
of the overhead and costs to operate in the sector. New Age, with its cash generative DSD operation, can spread its overhead across a much larger base,
providing the resources to allocate to brand building and expansion in a way few if any other small cap beverage companies can.

Our DSD distribution group in Colorado includes almost 40 unique routes, with a >20 person sales team, and a >20 person merchandising team,
covering more than 6,000 outlets for more than 60 brands and more than 600 SKU’s. The DSD arm of our business is a test bed for new products before
national rollout, provides an early indicator system for any new emerging competitive brands or beverage segments, and gives the group near captive
control of the shelf space across the 6,000 outlets the group services.

The scale that the DSD system represents, coupled with the efficient cash conversion of the type of operation, provides the resources and infrastructure
base to facilitate expansion and diversification to higher margin beverages sold globally in traditional and new higher margin channels. The
combination provides the potential for superior free cash flow and net income generation in a way that would be very difficult for other smaller
beverage companies to achieve.

New Age has a full brand portfolio competing in only the growth segments of the industry, and as such is the only one-stop-shop supplier of healthy
beverages for retailers and distributors. These entities are reticent to work with smaller, individual brand companies without the resources and
infrastructure to support them.

New Age’s portfolio of healthy brands enables the Company to pursue the strategic high ground of “world’s leading healthy functional beverage
company,” filling the void created by the legacy leaders in the industry. Not only does the Company enjoy the growth rate benefits of the segments in
which it competes, but by focusing exclusively on healthy alternatives, it limits its distractions and required investments to maintain businesses in
declining segments like juice or carbonated soft drinks for example that many of its competitors are forced to continue.

New Age has a strong distribution in major key accounts across the US that has near doubled in the past six-months. We have insights that this
“distribution presence” supports development of “brand preference,” and provides a stable and sustainable revenue platform. New Age has also recently
structured preferred partnerships with major distributors to penetrate new and alternative channels, and believes it has first mover advantage with them
to take advantage of significant growth in these segments.

The Company has spent the past 10 years developing a national hybrid distribution network with other major DSD operators, natural channel
distributors, and direct to store wholesale distribution. The Company’s national network represents a significant competitive advantage and barrier to
entry vs. many other smaller beverage companies.

The Company has financial flexibility with a strong balance sheet, de minimis debt, and access to the capital markets unlike many other private or small
public beverage entities.

New Age has historically enjoyed a low cost of capital relative to its peer group by virtue of its line of credit at libor plus 2 established with US Bank in
2016. That line, coupled with its ability to access the capital markets up to $100 million via its S-3 facility established in October 2017 to facilitate
major acquisitions or provide capital for significant organic growth opportunities, provides the firm with an unprecedented ability and significant
optionality to intelligently support its growth.

New Age has the organizational capabilities and systems unlike other small beverage companies., defined as having the people, processes, systems,
information, and culture/environment to drive superior, sustainable, profitable growth,

New Age’s senior leadership team has collectively more than 100 years of beverage industry experience and experience working in both major
multinationals and smaller beverage companies. The Company’s board of directors brings global strategic leadership experience gleaned from running
highly successful major multinational companies in the beverage, retail, and other industries. From a process standpoint, New Age has dedicated daily,
weekly, monthly and annual routines, by and through which it runs the operation.

The Company recently employed Microsoft dynamics and Encompass ERP systems, and has an internal target setting system whereby every associate
in the firm has specific metrics cascaded from the Company’s annual business plan. New Age has also developed its own proprietary dashboards to
augment its access to syndicated data and industry information, and employed a culture of ownership and environment of accountability and that is
metric driven and performance oriented.

As a result of the Company’s strengths, three competitive advantages are emerging including an ability to drive superior organic growth on its core portfolio, an
ability to profitably acquire and integrate new companies and brands, and an ability to develop new breakthrough products organically leveraging its R&D and
scientific and medical expertise.

Reliance on Third Party Suppliers and Distributors

We rely on various suppliers for the raw and packaging materials, production, sale and distribution of our products. Our third party distribution providers are for
certain areas of the country that are outside of our owned DSD distribution network. The material terms of these relationships are typically annually negotiated and
include pricing, quality standards, delivery times and conditions, purchase orders, and payment terms. Payment terms are typically net 30, meaning that the total



invoiced amount is expected to be paid in full within 30 days from when the date on which the products or services are provided. We believe that we have
sufficient options for each of our raw and packaging material needs, as well as our third party distribution needs and also have long term relationships with each of
our suppliers and distributors, resulting in consistency in quality and supply. We also believe that we have sufficient breadth of retail relationships with distribution
in both large and small retailers and independents and across multiple channels (mass, club, pharmacies, convenience, and small and large format retailers)
throughout the United States.

The contractual arrangements with all third parties, including suppliers, manufacturers, distributors and retailers are typical of the beverage industry with standard
terms. We have no long-term obligations with any of the third parties nor do any of them have long-term obligations with us. The third party supplier,
manufacturing and distribution agreements were entered into in the normal course of business within the guidelines of industry practices and are not deemed
material and definite.




Significant Customers
We have significantly diversified our retail distribution base over the past 18 months to minimize customer concentration and risk with any one customer. For the
year ended December 31, 2017, three customers represented approximately 21.4% (9.9%, 6.3% and 5.2%) of net revenues. For the year ended December 31, 2016,
three customers represented approximately 27.5% (14.5%, 7.5% and 5.5%) of net revenues. As of December 31, 2017, three customers represented 23.1% (10.5%,
6.7% and 5.9%) of accounts receivables. As of December 31, 2016, three customers represented approximately 24.9% (12.3%, 8.9% and 8.2%) of accounts
receivable.
Growth Strategies
Our long-term objective is to become the leading healthy beverage company. We believe that by focusing on our purpose, which is to make a difference for
consumers with healthier beverages, and by flawlessly executing our business plan, that we can achieve that objective. Based on available information, we believe
we are one of the top 20 healthy beverage companies worldwide today, and the 58th largest non-alcoholic beverage company overall. We intend to achieve our
goal by driving organic growth behind our existing portfolio of healthy functional beverages, in all relevant packages and product formats, across all major retail
channels, in all major markets, through an aligned network of retailer and distributor partners.
Our key growth strategies include the following:

— Build core brands with new products in emerging growth segments

— Drive key account distribution and in-store merchandising

— Penetrate new channels, markets and segments

— Expand gross and EBITDA margins

— Build metric-driven, performance oriented, culture of ownership and accountability
Sales and Marketing
We currently have an in-house sales and merchandising team consisting of approximately 75 individuals based in Colorado and throughout the United States,
whose compensation is highly variable and highly performance-based. Each sales person has individual targets for increasing “base” volume through distribution
expansion, and “incremental” volume through promotions and other in-store merchandising and display activity. As distribution to new major customers, new
major channels, or new major markets increases, we will expand the sales and marketing team on a variable basis.
We market our products using a range of marketing mediums including in-store merchandising and promotions, experiential marketing, events, and sponsorships,

digital marketing and social media, direct marketing, and traditional media including print, radio, outdoor, and TV.
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Distribution

Our products are currently distributed in 10 countries internationally, and in 50 states domestically through a hybrid of four routes to market including our own
DSD system that reaches more than 6,000 outlets, and to more than 35,000 outlets throughout the United States directly through customer’s warehouses, through
our network of DSD partners, and through our network of brokers and natural product distributors. Our products are sold through multiple channels including
major grocery retail, natural food retail, specialty outlets, hypermarkets, club stores, pharmacies, convenience stores and gas stations.

Our sales strategy is to distribute our products worldwide through to consumers in the most cost effect manner possible. We sell our products direct to consumers
through our own Ecommerce system and other Ecommerce systems, through retail customers across grocery, gas, convenience, pharmacy, mass, club and other
channels, to major foodservice customers, to alternative channel customers including juice/smoothie shops, military, office, and health club, and through hospitals,
outpatient doctor offices, and other channels.

The diversification of our channels and distributors, similar to the diversification of retail customer base, is expected to minimize distributor and channel
concentration and risk, but is also expected have a very positive margin mix effect, and a very positive incremental volume impact, with the combination of
International, Ecommerce, Foodservice, and Health Sciences expected to exceed 15% of total revenue in 2018, from a negligible base in 2017.

Research and Development Activities

Our research and development efforts are focused on two primary paths. The first is to continually review our existing formulas and production processes and
structure to evaluate opportunities for cost of goods sold improvements, without degrading the quality or fundamentally changing the consumer appeal taste profile
of our existing products. The second major research and development effort is in the development of fundamentally new and differentiated products, based on
consumer insights and trends and competitive intensity in those segments. The Company’s mission to only provide healthy functional beverages governs our
development efforts.

The Company’s new products and R&D efforts in its Health Sciences Division, are science-backed by the patents, cooperative research studies and human and
animal trails acquired from the Premier Micronutrient Corporation. They are targeted toward to fundamental human needs states, segments that do not yet exist in
beverages, but do exist in the pharmaceutical arena, and opportunities where New Age can gain first mover advantage. The Company’s mission is to only provide
healthy functional beverages with real efficacy for consumers. That guiding principle of “no compromise” governs all our development efforts.

Seasonality

We experience some seasonality whereby the peak summer months show a higher level of sales and consumption. However, the structure of our business and range
of products in our portfolio mitigate any major fluctuations. Our revenue during the second and third quarters of the year have historically been approximately 60%
of annual revenue, and this seasonality is expected to continue for the foreseeable future.

Competition

The beverage industry, specifically the healthy beverage industry, is highly competitive. We face intense competition from very large, international corporations,
as well as from local and national companies. In addition, we face competition from well-known companies that have large market share.

The intensity of competition in the future is expected to increase and no assurance can be provided that we can sustain our market position or expand our business.
Many of our current and potential competitors are well established and have longer operating histories, significantly greater financial and operational resources,

and name recognition than we have. However, we believe that with our diverse product line, consisting of kombucha tea, green tea, water and energy beverages, it
will give us the ability to obtain a large market share, and continue to generate sales and compete in the industry.
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Patents and Trademarks

We hold United States trademarks, Serial Numbers 86694956 and 85087186 for Bucha. We also hold United States trademarks, Serial Numbers 85025636 and
76438612 for Aspen Pure®, Serial Number 85347345 for Just Pure Water ®, Serial Number 77312629 for XingEnergy ®, Serial Number 77050595 for XingTea ®
, all of which were acquired in our acquisition of Xing. We hold the United States trademarks, Serial Numbers 85243126 for Coco-Libre. We hold the United
States trademarks, Serial Numbers 85066981, 85767476, 86709724, and 86681878 for Marley. We hold the United States trademarks, Serial Numbers for
PediaAde 87599349.

We hold the United States patents, patent numbers 6,849,613 for Multiple Antioxidant Micronutrients, 7,399,755 for Formulations Comprising Multiple Dietary
and Endogenously Made Antioxidants and B-Vitamins, and 7,449,451 for Use of Multiple Antioxidant Micronutrients as Systemic Biological Radioprotective
Agents Against Potential Ionizing Radiation Risks. We hold the United States patents, patent numbers 7,605,145 for Micronutrient Formulations for Treatment of
Diabetes Mellitus, 7,628,984 for Micronutrient Formulations for Pulmonary and Heart Health, and 7,635,469 for Micronutrient Formulations for Hearing Health.
We hold the United States patents, patent numbers 8,221,799 for Multiple Antioxidants for Optimal Health, 8,592,392 for Multiple antioxidant micronutrients,
9,655,966 for Micronutrient Formulations for Radiation Applications, and patents pending and continuations in progress for Antioxidant Micronutrients used in
Electronic Cigarettes, and BioShield for Protection

Against Environmental Exposures.

Any encroachment upon our proprietary information, including the unauthorized use of our brand name, the use of a similar name by a competing company or a
lawsuit initiated either by us or against us for infringement upon proprietary information or improper use of a trademark or patent, may affect our ability to create
brand name recognition, cause customer confusion and/or have a detrimental effect on our business due to the cost of defending any potential litigation related to
infringement. Litigation or proceedings before the U.S. or International Patent and Trademark Offices may be necessary in the future to enforce our intellectual
property rights, to protect our trade secrets and/or to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others. Any such litigation or adverse proceeding
could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and could seriously harm our business operations and/or results of operations.

Government and Industry Regulation

We are subject to a variety of federal, state and local laws and regulations in the U.S. These laws and regulations apply to many aspects of our business including
the manufacture, safety, labeling, transportation, advertising and sale of our products. Violations of these laws or regulations in the manufacture, safety, labeling,
transportation and advertising of our products could damage our reputation and/or result in regulatory actions with substantial penalties. For example, changes in
recycling and bottle deposit laws or special taxes on our beverages and our ingredients could increase our costs. Regulatory focus on the health, safety and
marketing of beverage products is increasing. Certain federal or state regulations or laws affecting the labeling of our products, such as California’s “Prop 65,”
which requires warnings on any product with substances that the state lists as potentially causing cancer or birth defects, are or could become applicable to our
products. At this time, our products do not require government approval, but as federal or state laws change, the manufacture or quality of our products may
become subject to additional regulation.

We are also subject to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”),
and Washington and Colorado Corporation Law. We will also be subject to common business and tax rules and regulations pertaining to the operation of our
business, such as the United States Internal Revenue Tax Code and the Washington and Colorado State Tax Codes, as well as international tax codes and shipping
tariffs. We will also be subject to proprietary regulations such as United States Trademark and Patent Law as it applies to the intellectual property of third parties.
We believe that the effects of existing or probable governmental regulations will be additional responsibilities of management to ensure that we are in compliance
with securities regulations as they apply to our products as well as ensuring that we do not infringe on any proprietary rights of others with respect to our products.
We will also need to maintain accurate financial records in order to remain compliant with securities regulations as well as any corporate tax liability we incur.
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Employees

As of the date of this Annual Report, we have 162 full-time employees. Our activities are managed by our officers and directors.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Any investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Investors should carefully consider the risks described below and all of the information contained
in this prospectus before deciding whether to purchase our common stock. Our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely
affected by these risks if any of them actually occur. This prospectus also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual
results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the risks we face as described
below and elsewhere in this prospectus.

Risks Related to our Financial Condition
We have incurred losses to date and may continue to incur losses.
We have incurred net losses since we commenced operations. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, our net losses were $3,535,926 and $3,633,079.

We had an accumulated deficit of $10,500,883 as of December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2016, we had an accumulated deficit of $6,964,957. These losses
have had, and likely will continue to have, an adverse effect on our working capital, assets, and equity. In order to achieve and sustain such revenue growth in the
future, we must significantly expand our market presence and revenues from existing and new customers. We may continue to incur losses in the future and may
never generate revenues sufficient to become profitable or to sustain profitability. Continuing losses may impair our ability to raise the additional capital required
to continue and expand our operations.

We are an “emerging growth company,” and the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to “emerging growth companies” could make our common stock
less attractive to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the JOBS Act. For as long as we are an emerging growth company, we may take advantage of certain
exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not emerging growth companies, including, but not limited
to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding
executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements and exemptions from the requirements of holding advisory “say-on-pay” votes on executive
compensation and shareholder advisory votes on golden parachute compensation. We will remain an “emerging growth company” until the earliest of (i) the last
day of the fiscal year during which we have total annual gross revenues of $1,000,000,000 or more; (ii) the last date of the fiscal year following the fifth
anniversary of the date of the first sale of common stock under this registration statement; (iii) the date on which we have, during the previous three-year period,
issued more than $1,000,000,000 in non-convertible debt; and (iv) the date on which we are deemed to be a “large accelerated filer” under the Exchange Act. We
will be deemed a large accelerated filer on the first day of the fiscal year after the market value of our common equity held by non-affiliates exceeds $700,000,000,
measured on January 1.

We cannot predict if investors will find our common stock less attractive to the extent we rely on the exemptions available to emerging growth companies. If some
investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may be more
volatile.

In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section

7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for complying with new or revised accounting standards. An emerging growth company can therefore delay the adoption of certain
accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies.
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A company that elects to be treated as an emerging growth company shall continue to be deemed an emerging growth company until the earliest of (i) the last day
of the fiscal year during which it had total annual gross revenues of $1,000,000,000 (as indexed for inflation), (ii) the last day of the fiscal year following the fifth
anniversary of the date of the first sale of common stock under this registration statement; (iii) the date on which it has, during the previous 3-year period, issued
more than $1,000,000,000 in non-convertible debt; or (iv) the date on which is deemed to be a ‘large accelerated filer’ as defined by the SEC, which would
generally occur upon it attaining a public float of at least $700,000,000.

Risks Related to our Business
Growth of operations will depend on the acceptance of our products and consumer discretionary spending.

The acceptance of our healthy beverage products by both retailers to gain distribution and by consumers to include in the beverage consumption repertoire is
critically important to our success. Shifts in retailer priorities and shifts in user preferences away from our products, our inability to develop effective healthy
beverage products that appeal to both retailers and consumers, or changes in our products that eliminate items popular with some consumers could harm our
business. Also, our success depends to a significant extent on discretionary user spending, which is influenced by general economic conditions and the availability
of discretionary income. Accordingly, we may experience an inability to generate revenue during economic downturns or during periods of uncertainty, where
users may decide to purchase beverage products that are cheaper or to forego purchasing any type of healthy beverage products, due to a lack of available capital.
Any material decline in the amount of discretionary spending could have a material adverse effect on our sales, results of operations, business and financial
condition.

We cannot be certain that the products that we offer will become, or continue to be, appealing and as a result there may not be any demand for these products
and our sales could decrease, which would result in a loss of revenue. Additionally, there is no guarantee that interest in our products will continue, which
could adversely affect our business and revenues.

Demand for products which we sell depends on many factors, including the number of customers we are able to attract and retain over time, the competitive
environment in the healthy beverage industry, as well as the beverage industry as a whole, may force us to reduce prices below our desired pricing level or increase
promotional spending, and ability to anticipate changes in user preferences and to meet consumer’s needs in a timely cost effective manner all could result in
immediate and longer term declines in the demand for the products we plan to offer, which could adversely affect our sales, cash flows and overall financial
condition. An investor could lose his or her entire investment as a result.

We have limited management resources and are dependent on key executives.

We are currently relying on key individuals to continue our business and operations and, in particular, the professional expertise and services of Mr. Brent Willis,
Chief Executive Officer, as well as key members of our executive management team and others in key management positions. In addition, our future success
depends in large part on the continued service of Mr. Willis. We have entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Willis, but the existence of an employment
agreement does not guarantee retention of Mr. Willis and we may not be able to retain Mr. Willis for the duration of or beyond the end of his term. If our officers
and directors chose not to serve or if they are unable to perform their duties, and we are unable to retain a replacement qualified individual or individuals, this
could have an adverse effect on our business operations, financial condition and operating results if we are unable to replace the current officers and directors with
other qualified individuals.
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Failure to achieve and maintain effective internal controls could have a material adverse effect on our business.

If we cannot provide reliable financial reports, our operating results could be harmed. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent
limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and
presentation. Based on our evaluations, our management concluded that there were no material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of control deficiencies, in internal control over
financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Any failure to implement required new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their implementation, could harm our
operating results or cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations. Failure to achieve and maintain an effective internal control environment could cause
investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information, which could have a material adverse effect on our stock price. Failure to comply with Section
404(a) could also potentially subject us to sanctions or investigations by the SEC or other regulatory authorities.

Competition that we face is varied and strong.

Our products and industry as a whole are subject to competition. There is no guarantee that we can develop or sustain a market position or expand our business. We
anticipate that the intensity of competition in the future will increase.

We compete with a number of entities in providing products to our customers. Such competitor entities include: (1) a variety of large multinational corporations
engaged in the beverage and healthy beverage industries, including but not limited to companies that have established loyal customer bases over several decades;
(2) healthy beverage companies that have an established customer base, and have the same or a similar business plan as we do and may be looking to expand
nationwide; and (3) a variety of other local and national healthy beverage companies with which we either currently or may, in the future, compete.

Many of our current and potential competitors are well established and have longer operating histories, significantly greater financial and operational resources,
and greater name and brand recognition than we have. As a result, these competitors may have greater credibility with both existing and potential customers. They
also may be able to offer more products and more aggressively promote and sell their products. Our competitors may also be able to support more aggressive
pricing than we will be able to, which could adversely affect sales, cause us to decrease our prices to remain competitive, or otherwise reduce the overall gross
profit earned on our products.

Our industry requires the attraction and retention of talented employees.

Success in the beverage industry, specifically as it relates to our healthy functional beverage products, does and will continue to require the acquisition and
retention of highly talented and experienced individuals. Due to the growth in the market segment targeted, such individuals and the talent and experience they
possess is in high demand. There is no guarantee that we will be able to attract and maintain access to such individuals. If we fail to attract, train, motivate and
retain talented personnel, our business, financial condition, and operating results may be materially and adversely impacted, which could result in the loss of your
entire investment.

We depend on a limited number of suppliers of raw and packaging materials.
We rely upon a limited number of suppliers for raw and packaging materials used to make and package our products. Our success will depend in part upon our
ability to successfully secure such materials from suppliers that are delivered with consistency and at a quality that meets our requirements. The price and

availability of these materials are subject to market conditions. Increases in the price of our products due to the increase in the cost of raw materials could have a
negative effect on our business.
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If we are unable to obtain sufficient quantities of raw and packaging materials, delays or reductions in product shipments could occur which would have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. The supply and price of raw materials used to produce our products can be affected by
a number of factors beyond our control, such as frosts, droughts, other weather conditions, economic factors affecting growing decisions, and various plant
diseases and pests. If any of the foregoing were to occur, no assurance can be given that such condition would not have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, our results of operations are dependent upon our ability to accurately forecast our requirements of raw
materials. Any failure by us to accurately forecast its demand for raw materials could result in an inability to meet higher than anticipated demand for products or
producing excess inventory, either of which may adversely affect our results of operations.

We depend on a small number of large retailers for a significant portion of our sales.

Food and beverage retailers across all channels in the U.S. and other markets have been consolidating, increasing margin demands of brand suppliers, and
increasing their own private brand offerings, resulting in large, sophisticated retailers with increased buying power. They are in a better position to resist our price
increases and demand lower prices. They also have leverage to require us to provide larger, more tailored promotional and product delivery programs. If we and
our distributor partners do not successfully provide appropriate marketing, product, packaging, pricing and service to these retailers, our product availability, sales
and margins could suffer. Certain retailers make up an important percentage of our products’ retail volume, including volume sold by our distributor partners.
Some retailers also offer their own private label products that compete with some of our brands. The loss of sales of any of our products by a major retailer could
have a material adverse effect on our business and financial performance.

We depend on third party manufacturers for a portion of our business.

A portion of our sales revenue is dependent on third party manufacturers that we do not control. The majority of these manufacturers’ business comes from
producing and/or selling either their own products or our competitors’ products. As independent companies, these manufacturers make their own business
decisions. They may have the right to determine whether, and to what extent, they manufacture our products, our competitors’ products and their own products.
They may devote more resources to other products or take other actions detrimental to our brands. In most cases, they are able to terminate their manufacturing
arrangements with us without cause. We may need to increase support for our brands in their territories and may not be able to pass on price increases to them.
Their financial condition could also be adversely affected by conditions beyond our control, and our business could suffer as a result. Deteriorating economic
conditions could negatively impact the financial viability of third party manufacturers. Any of these factors could negatively affect our business and financial
performance.

Failure of third-party distributors upon which we rely could adversely affect our business.

We rely heavily on third party distributors for the sale of our products to retailers. The loss of a significant distributor could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Our distributors may also provide distribution services to competing brands, as well as larger, national or
international brands, and may be to varying degrees influenced by their continued business relationships with other larger beverage, and specifically, healthy
beverage companies. Our independent distributors may be influenced by a large competitor if they rely on that competitor for a significant portion of their sales.
There can be no assurance that our distributors will continue to effectively market and distribute our products. The loss of any distributor or the inability to replace
a poorly performing distributor in a timely fashion could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Furthermore,
no assurance can be given that we will successfully attract new distributors as they increase their presence in their existing markets or expand into new markets.

Substantial disruption to production at our manufacturing and distribution facilities could occur.

A disruption in production at our beverage manufacturing facility could have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, a disruption could occur at any
of our other facilities or those of our suppliers, bottlers or distributors. The disruption could occur for many reasons, including fire, natural disasters, weather, water
scarcity, manufacturing problems, disease, strikes, transportation or supply interruption, government regulation, cybersecurity attacks or terrorism. Alternative
facilities with sufficient capacity or capabilities may not be available, may cost substantially more or may take a significant time to start production, each of which
could negatively affect our business and financial performance.
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We are subject to seasonality related to sales of our products.

Our business is subject to substantial seasonal fluctuations. Historically, a significant portion of our net sales and net earnings has been realized during the period
from May through September. Accordingly, our operating results may vary significantly from quarter to quarter. Our operating results for any particular quarter are
not necessarily indicative of any other results. If for any reason our sales were to be substantially below seasonal norms, our annual revenues and earnings could be
materially and adversely affected.

We may fail to comply with applicable government laws and regulations.

We are subject to a variety of federal, state and local laws and regulations in the U.S. These laws and regulations apply to many aspects of our business including
the manufacture, safety, labeling, transportation, advertising and sale of our products. Violations of these laws or regulations in the manufacture, safety, labeling,
transportation and advertising of our products could damage our reputation and/or result in regulatory actions with substantial penalties. In addition, any significant
change in such laws or regulations or their interpretation, or the introduction of higher standards or more stringent laws or regulations, could result in increased
compliance costs or capital expenditures. For example, changes in recycling and bottle deposit laws or special taxes on our beverages and our ingredients could
increase our costs. Regulatory focus on the health, safety and marketing of beverage products is increasing. Certain federal or state regulations or laws affecting the
labeling of our products, such as California’s “Prop 65,” which requires warnings on any product with substances that the state lists as potentially causing cancer or
birth defects, are or could become applicable to our products.

We face various operating hazards that could result in the reduction of our operations.

Our operations are subject to certain hazards and liability risks faced by beverage companies that manufacture and distribute water, tea and energy drink products,
such as defective products, contaminated products and damaged products. The occurrence of such a problem could result in a costly product recall and serious
damage to our reputation for product quality, as well as potential lawsuits. Although we maintain insurance against certain risks under various general liability and
product liability insurance policies, no assurance can be given that our insurance will be adequate to fully cover any incidents of product contamination or injuries
resulting from our operations and our products. We cannot assure you that we will be able to continue to maintain insurance with adequate coverage for liabilities
or risks arising from our business operations on acceptable terms. Even if the insurance is adequate, insurance premiums could increase significantly which could
result in higher costs to us.

Litigation and publicity concerning product quality, health and other issues could adversely affect our results of operations, business and financial condition.

Our business could be adversely affected by litigation and complaints from customers or government authorities resulting from product defects or product
contamination. Adverse publicity about these allegations may negatively affect us, regardless of whether the allegations are true, by discouraging customers from
buying our products. We could also incur significant liabilities, if a lawsuit or claim results in a decision against us, or litigation costs, regardless of the result.
Further, any litigation may cause our key employees to expend resources and time normally devoted to the operations of our business.

Risks Related to our Intellectual Property
It is difficult and costly to protect our proprietary rights.

Our commercial success will depend in part on obtaining and maintaining trademark protection, patent protection, and trade secret protection of our products and
brands, as well as successfully defending that intellectual property against third-party challenges. We will only be able to protect our intellectual property related to
our trademarks, patents and brands to the extent that we have rights under valid and enforceable trademarks, patents or trade secrets that cover our products and
brands. Changes in either the trademark and patent laws or in interpretations of trademark and patent laws in the U.S. and other countries may diminish the value of
our intellectual property. Accordingly, we cannot predict the breadth of claims that may be allowed or enforced in our issued trademarks or our issued patents. The
degree of future protection for our proprietary rights is uncertain because legal means afford only limited protection and may not adequately protect our rights or
permit us to gain or keep our competitive advantage.
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We may face intellectual property infringement claims that could be time-consuming and costly to defend, and could result in our loss of significant rights and
the assessment of treble damages.

From time to time we may face intellectual property infringement, misappropriation, or invalidity/non-infringement claims from third parties. Some of these claims
may lead to litigation. The outcome of any such litigation can never be guaranteed, and an adverse outcome could affect us negatively. For example, were a third
party to succeed on an infringement claim against us, we may be required to pay substantial damages (including up to treble damages if such infringement were
found to be willful). In addition, we could face an injunction, barring us from conducting the allegedly infringing activity. The outcome of the litigation could
require us to enter into a license agreement which may not be under acceptable, commercially reasonable, or practical terms or we may be precluded from
obtaining a license at all. It is also possible that an adverse finding of infringement against us may require us to dedicate substantial resources and time in
developing non-infringing alternatives, which may or may not be possible. In the case of diagnostic tests, we would also need to include non-infringing
technologies which would require us to re-validate our tests. Any such re-validation, in addition to being costly and time consuming, may be unsuccessful.

Finally, we may initiate claims to assert or defend our own intellectual property against third parties. Any intellectual property litigation, irrespective of whether
we are the plaintiff or the defendant, and regardless of the outcome, is expensive and time-consuming, and could divert our management’s attention from our
business and negatively affect our operating results or financial condition.

We may be subject to claims by third parties asserting that our employees or we have misappropriated their intellectual property, or claiming ownership of
what we regard as our own intellectual property.

Although we try to ensure that we, our employees, and independent contractors do not use the proprietary information or know-how of others in their work for us,
we may be subject to claims that we, our employees, or independent contractors have used or disclosed intellectual property in violation of others’ rights. These
claims may cover a range of matters, such as challenges to our trademarks, as well as claims that our employees or independent contractors are using trade secrets
or other proprietary information of any such employee’s former employer or independent contractors. As a result, we may be forced to bring claims against third
parties, or defend claims they may bring against us, to determine the ownership of what we regard as our intellectual property. If we fail in prosecuting or
defending any such claims, in addition to paying monetary damages, we may lose valuable intellectual property rights or personnel. Even if we are successful in
prosecuting or defending against such claims, litigation could result in substantial costs and be a distraction to management.

Risks Related to our Common Stock and this Offering
The market price of our common stock may be volatile and adversely affected by several factors.
The market price of our common stock could fluctuate significantly in response to various factors and events, including:

— our ability to integrate operations, products and services;

— our ability to execute our business plan;

—  operating results below expectations;

— litigation regarding product contamination;

— our issuance of additional securities, including debt or equity or a combination thereof, which will be necessary to fund our operating expenses;
— announcements of new or similar products by our competitors;

— loss of any strategic relationship, including raw material provider or distributor relationships;

— economic and other external factors; and

—  period-to-period fluctuations in our financial results.
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In addition, the securities markets have from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that are unrelated to the operating performance of
particular companies. These market fluctuations may also materially and adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

We have not and may never pay dividends to shareholders .

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends or distributions on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain our future earnings, if any, to support
operations and to finance expansion and therefore we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

The declaration, payment and amount of any future dividends will be made at the discretion of the board of directors, and will depend upon, among other things,
the results of our operations, cash flows and financial condition, operating and capital requirements, and other factors as the board of directors considers relevant.
There is no assurance that future dividends will be paid, and, if dividends are paid, there is no assurance with respect to the amount of any such dividend. If we do
not pay dividends, our common stock may be less valuable because a return on an investor’s investment will only occur if our stock price appreciates.

Our failure to meet the continued listing requirements of The NASDAQ Capital Market could result in a delisting of our common stock.

If we fail to satisfy the continued listing requirements of The NASDAQ Capital Market, such as the corporate governance requirements or the minimum closing
bid price requirement, NASDAQ may take steps to delist our common stock. Such a delisting would likely have a negative effect on the price of our common stock
and would impair your ability to sell or purchase our common stock when you wish to do so. In the event of a delisting, we would take actions to restore our
compliance with The NASDAQ Capital Market listing requirements, but we can provide no assurance that any such action taken by us would allow our common
stock to become listed again, stabilize the market price or improve the liquidity of our common stock, prevent our common stock from dropping below The
NASDAQ Capital Market minimum bid price requirement or prevent future non-compliance with The NASDAQ Capital Market listing requirements.

If equity research analysts do not publish research or reports about our business or if they issue unfavorable commentary or downgrade our common stock,
the price of our common stock could decline.

The trading market for our common stock relies in part on the research and reports that equity research analysts publish about us and our business. We do not
control these analysts. The price of our common stock could decline if one or more equity analyst downgrades our stock or if analysts downgrade our stock or issue
other unfavorable commentary or cease publishing reports about us or our business.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our operations, packaging and distribution are currently being conducted out of the offices located at 1700 E. 68 th Avenue, Denver, CO 80229. We lease our
Colorado operational facility, for which we pay $52,000 per month. We consider the current space to be adequate and will reassess our needs based upon future
growth. Our manufacturing facilities are located in Alamosa, Colorado for our Aspen Pure product, which are 100% owned.

The Company also owns over 30 trucks as part of its direct store distribution system, in three warehouses, and operates multiple satellite warehouses in Colorado

and other strategic locations around the U.S. that are either short term leased or charged are on a per case storage basis.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We know of no material proceedings in which any of our directors, officers or affiliates, or any registered or beneficial stockholder is a party adverse to our
company or has a material interest adverse to our company.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Our common stock began trading on the NASDAQ Capital Market on February 17, 2017, under the symbol “NBEV.” The following table sets forth the range of
high and low bid prices of our common stock as reported and summarized on The NASDAQ Capital Market, as applicable, for the periods indicated. These prices
are based on inter-dealer bid and asked prices, without markup, markdown, commissions, or adjustments and may not represent actual transactions.

High Low
Calendar Quarter
2016
$ 036 3 0.19
First Quarter
$ 164 3 1.42
Second Quarter
$ 1.70 3 1.60
Third Quarter
$ 418 3 3.95
Fourth Quarter
2017
$ 555 § 3.51
First Quarter
$ 672 $ 3.71
Second Quarter
$ 509 $ 3.41
Third Quarter
$ 335 % 1.99

Fourth Quarter
Holders of Our Common Stock
As of the date of this filing we have 1,314 holders of common stock and there are 38,933,646 shares of our common stock outstanding.
Dividend Policy
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock for the
foreseeable future. The payment of dividends on common stock, if any, in the future is within the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our
earnings, capital requirements and financial condition and other relevant facts. We currently intend to retain all future earnings, if any, to finance the development
and growth of our business.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
We have not purchased any of our equity securities.
Sales of Unregistered Securities
None have been issued.
The foregoing issuances were issued in reliance upon the exemptions from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, provided by Section 4(a)(2)

and Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not applicable.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with the section entitled “Selected Financial
Data” and our financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Information Statement. Some of the information contained in this discussion and
analysis or set forth elsewhere in this Information Statement, including information with respect to our plans and strategy for our business and related financing,
includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. See “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.” Our actual results may
differ materially from those described below. You should read the “Risk Factors” section of this Information Statement for a discussion of important factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in the following discussion and
analysis.

Overview

We are a Colorado-based healthy beverage company engaged in the development and commercialization of a portfolio organic, natural and other better-for-you
healthy beverages. We market a full portfolio of RTD better-for-you beverages including competitive offerings in the kombucha, tea, coffee, functional waters,
relaxation drinks, energy drinks, rehydrating beverages, and functional medical beverage segments. We differentiate our brands through superior functional
performance characteristics and ingredients and offer products that are 100% organic and natural, with no HFCS, no GMOs, no preservatives, and only all natural
flavors, fruits, and ingredients.

Our products are currently distributed in 10 countries internationally, and in 50 states domestically through a hybrid of four routes to market including our own
DSD system that reaches more than 6,000 outlets, and to more than 35,000 other outlets throughout the United States directly through customer’s warehouses,
through our network of DSD partners, and through our network of brokers and natural product distributors. Our products are sold through multiple channels
including major grocery retail, natural food retail, specialty outlets, hypermarkets, club stores, pharmacies, convenience stores and gas stations. We market our
products using a range of marketing mediums including in-store merchandising and promotions, experiential marketing, events, and sponsorships, digital
marketing and social media, direct marketing, and traditional media including print, radio, outdoor, and TV.

We rank as the 58 th largest non-alcoholic beverage company in the world, one of largest healthy beverage companies, and the fastest growing. We intend to
become the world’s leading healthy beverage company, with leading brands, leading growth for retailers and distributors, and leading return on investment for
shareowners. Our target market is currently health conscious consumers, who are becoming more interested and better educated on what is included in their diets,
causing them to shift away from less healthy options such as carbonated soft drinks or other high caloric beverages, and towards alternative beverages choices.
Consumer awareness of the benefits of healthier lifestyles and the availability of heathier beverages is rapidly accelerating worldwide, and New Age is capitalizing
on that shift.

Highlights

We generate revenue through the commercialization of our portfolio of brands to consumers via our retailer partners and directly via our own Ecommerce system.
The following are highlights of our operating results for the year ended December 31, 2017:
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We believe that on a consolidated basis, and with the reductions in operating expenses in each of the acquired companies in 2016 and 2017, the integrated company
will generate sufficient cash flow internally to meet its needs. In addition, as a subsequent event in March 2018, the Company received approval of a credit facility
with PNC bank of $15 million, at an estimated annual interest rate of ~3.5%. We previously had a small revolving credit line in place with another bank, which is
being replaced by the new accordion line with PNC. The new facility with PNC bank is in the process of closing, so the Company recently effectuated a small
confidentially marketed offering to facilitate purchase of inventory to meet customer demand in the interim.

The following are highlights of our operating results for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to the year ended December 31, 2016:

Revenue. During the year ended December 31, 2017, we generated gross revenue of $56,636,287 compared to $27,323,213 for the year ended December 31, 2016,
an increase of 107%. Our revenue for the period is primarily attributed to the growth and scale of our core Xing and Bucha brands and our DSD distribution
business that has grown consecutively for nine years. The growth was also impacted by the acquisitions of Coco-libre and Marley Brands. the additions of the
Coco-Libre brand for nine months of the year, and the Marley brands for six months of the year, coupled with the launch of new products under both of these
newly acquired brands. We generated net revenue of $52,188,295 reflective of lower discounts, returns and billbacks as we evolve our distribution systems from
primarily a 100% DSD distribution system nationally in 2016, to more of a lower-cost, hybrid distribution route to market.

Gross Margin . Gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2017 was 29% (excluding shipping costs), compared to 27% for the year ended December 31, 2016,
an increase of 3 percentage points. The increase in gross margin was due to several factors, including (1) a significant change in mix, (2) an increase in gross sales,
(3) reduced freight costs and manufacturing labor, and (4) improved raw material and packaging supply costs including gaining the benefits of increased scale.
Cost of goods sold remains the Company’s most significant opportunity to improve net profitability. Our cost of goods sold (including shipping) for the year ended
December 31, 2017 was $39,788,384 equating to 76.2% of net revenue compared to $19,505,580 equating to 77.1% of net revenue in for the year ended December
31, 2016, reflective of the focus and improvement made in improving cost of goods sold in 2017.

Operating Expenses. During the year ended December 31, 2017, our operating expenses were $18,448,964, an increase of $9,025,981, as compared to $9,422,983
for the year ended December 31, 2016. The increase was primarily attributable to one-time, nonrecurring costs totaling approximately $ 5,153,000 , which
included due diligence and financing costs associated with acquisitions, lease and other office termination expenses associated with consolidations and
acquisitions, and short-term, carry-over transitional headcount costs from acquisitions. It also includes contractual obligations and one-time bonuses to personnel
associated with acquisitions, shipping and transfers of inventory from acquisitions, legal expenses associated with acquisitions and financing activities, and
temporarily high COGS from previous sourcing and manufacturing structures until full integration with New Age’s operations.

Not including nonrecurring costs of approximately $5,153,000, our operating expenses were approximately $13,295,964 for the year ended December 31, 2017,
equating to 25.5% of net revenue.

EBITDA. During the year ended December 31, 2017, we incurred numerous one-time expenses associated with the financing of the Company, the uplist onto The

NASDAQ Capital Market exchange, and the three acquisitions that occurred during 2017. When removing the one-time impacts and non-cash charges, EBITDA
approximated $5,044,000.
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Management defines EBITDA as earnings before income tax, depreciation and amortization, one-time compensation and acquisition charges, interest expense,
shared-based compensation and other acquisition-related integration charges. Management believes EBITDA to be a meaningful indicator of our performance that
provides useful information to investors regarding our financial condition and results of operations because it removes material one-time and non-reoccurring
charges.

We consider quantitative and qualitative factors in assessing whether to adjust for the impact of items that may be significant or that could affect an understanding
of our ongoing financial and business performance or trends.

Non-GAAP information should be considered as supplemental in nature and is not meant to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for the related financial
information prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. In addition, our non-GAAP financial measures may not be the same as or comparable to similar non-GAAP
measures presented by other companies.

The following table includes the reconciliation of our consolidated US GAAP net loss to our consolidated EBITDA:

Years ended

December 31,

2017 2016
(In thousands)
$ (3,536 $ (3,633
Net loss ) )
1,606 523
Depreciation and amortization
228 299
Interest expense
1,731
Stock compensation expense 982
One-time charges:
674 251
Cost and payments for completion of acquisitions and NADAQ uplisting
472
Due diligence and professional services fees incurred for acquisitions 1,631
148 41
Lease termination charges incurred for acquisitions
799 83
Severance charges incurred for former employees from acquisitions
_ 3,060 35
Integration of synergies
_ 5,153 2,041
Total one-time charges
$ 5,182 % 212

EBITDA
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Results of Operations

The remainder of this MD&A discusses our continuing operations of the newly combined entity including all of the Company’s brands. The comparisons on a
twelve month basis for 2017 and 2016 are of the newly combined entity.

For the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to the year ended December 31, 2016

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016

$ 52,188295 § 25,301,806

Net revenue

39,788,384 19,505,580
Cost of goods sold

12,399,911 5,796,226
Gross profit

18,448,964 9,422,983
Operating expenses

(2,513,127 6,322
Other (income) expenses )

(3,535,926 (3,633,079
Net loss ) )
Revenues

Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2017 were $52,188,295 as compared to $25,301,806 for the year ended December 31, 2016. The primary reason for
the significant increase was the acquisition and integration of Xing on June 30, 2016 which was consolidated for twelve months, the growth of the core brand and
DSD distribution business that has now grown for nine years consecutively, and the acquisitions of Coco-Libre and Marley brands that were consolidated in 2017
financial results for nine months and six months respectively.

Organic growth of the Bucha Live Kombucha brand contributed to overall revenue growth, with the brand more than tripling in scale since integration and
conversion to being shelf stable, along with the contribution of the DSD Division. Most new distribution for the firm, one of the key revenue drivers and strategic
pillars of the firm did not occur until the beginning of 2018, as in 2017, we were in the process of creating the business, financial, and brand portfolio foundation of
the Company. With that now largely in place, and with a rearchitecting of the acquired brands, the core brands and additions to the portfolio in broader distribution
are in a position to contribute significant greater organic growth.

Cost of Goods Sold
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016

$ 37,114,005 $ 18,408,750
Production costs and labor
2,674,379 1,096,830-

Shipping cost

15

39,788,384

15

19,505,580

Cost of goods sold

Total cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $39,788,384 as compared to $19,505,580 for the year ended December 31, 2016.
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Gross margin (not including shipping) reached 29% for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to 26% for the year ended December 31, 2016. The increase
in the gross margin was due to several factors, including (1) a significant change in mix, (2) an increase in gross sales, (3) reduced freight costs and manufacturing
labor, and (4) improved raw material and packaging supply costs including gaining the benefits of increased scale.

Improvement in costs of goods sold is one of the Company’s major priorities, and numerous improvement opportunities across each brand have been executed with
additional action plans emplaced to further improve gross margins above the target 40%.

Operating Expenses
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016

$ 3,840,332 $ 1,584,104
Advertising, promotion and selling

13,940,583 6,367,606
General and administrative
668,049 1,471,273
Legal and professional ) )
$ 18,448,964 9,422,983

Ines

Total operating expenses

Total operating expenses for the twelve months ended December 31, 2017 were $18,448,964, an increase of $9,025,981 as compared to $9,422,983 for the year
ended December 31, 2016. The primary reason for the significant increase was the formation of the Company including the acquisitions and integration of Bucha,
Xing, Coco-libre, Marley, and PMC in the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2017. The increase was also attributable to one-time, nonrecurring costs associated
with creating and financing the entity totaling approximately $5,153,000.

In addition of the cost synergies already obtained including elimination of 70 headcount associated with the previous standalone entities before integration into the
New Age system, there are an additional greater than $5 million of further synergies and saving to be obtained both in operating expenses and in cost of goods sold
and shipping.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2017, we had cash of $285,245. The Company has always operated with a limited cash balance. This led management to the decision to issue
an additional 2,285,715 shares of commons stock (prior to consideration of any exercises on the underwriters’ shares) on April 10, 2018 for net proceeds of
approximately $3,500,000, and provides sufficient working capital to continue to support the growth of the Company in 2018.

The acquisitions in 2017 and 2016 substantially improved the Company’s resources, and provided the scale to be profitable. We believe we have sufficient cash
and generate sufficient profitability to meet the needs of the integrated operations. We estimate our capital needs over the next twelve-month period to be
$3,000,000 to $3,500,000. We may seek to sell additional equity securities. Any sale of additional equity securities will result in dilution to our stockholders. The
incurrence of indebtedness will result in increased debt service obligations and could require us to agree to operating and financial covenants that could restrict our
operations or modify our plans to grow the business. Financing may not be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Any failure by us to raise
additional funds on terms favorable to us, or at all, will limit our ability to expand our business operations and could harm our overall business prospects.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company eliminated $200,000 of convertible promissory notes and all other debts. The Company did assume a
$1,500,000 obligation when it acquired the Coco-libre brand, and has also utilized $2,000,000 of its previous line of credit with US Bank.
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Working Capital

December 31 December 31,

2017 2016

$ 16,224,143 $§ 10,005,922
Current assets
11,113,259 11,442,748

Less: current liabilities

15

5,110,884  § (1,436,826
Working capital (deficiency) )

Current assets are primarily comprised of accounts receivable and inventories.

Current liabilities are comprised of accounts payable and accrued expenses as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and a current portion of a note payable totaling
$3,427,051 and $4,562,179, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Cash Flows
Year ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ (8,410,777 $ 975,176
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities )
6,227,421 (8,547,198
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities )
1,939,513 8,057,254
Net cash provided by financing activities
$ (243,843  $ 485,232

Net change in cash )
Operating Activities

Net cash (used in) operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $(8,410,777) Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended
December 31, 2016 was $975,176. The change was attributable to one-time charges incurred for the acquisitions , gain on sale of the building and changes in
working capital .

Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activities is primarily driven by our sale of the building and purchase of Maverick Brands, LLC was $6,227,421. Net cash used in
investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $(8,547,198) and primarily driven by our acquisition of Xing.

Financing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2017, net cash provided by financing activities was $1,939,513, was due to proceeds from the issuance of our common stock in
connection with our NASDAQ uplisting in February 2017 for approximately $15,400,000 (net of issuance costs and fees) and repayments of note payables of
approximately $15,500,000. In addition, we obtained additional financing of approximately $2,000,000 from US Bank. For the year ended December 31, 2016, net
cash provided by financing activities of $8,057,254 was due to us borrowing (i) $10,700,000 from US Bank to finance the Xing acquisition. The $10.7 million in
debt was secured in two separate notes with U.S. Bank; one note for $4.8 million, which is secured by our Denver, Colorado property; and another revolving note
of $5.9 million, which is secured by the company’s inventories and receivables.

$2,200,000 of the $10,700,000 was used to pay off the balance from the previous mortgagor and the remaining $8.5 million was used to fund the Xing acquisition.
There was additional debt of (ii) $200,000 from an unrelated party pursuant to a convertible note payable (that has since been converted).
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial
condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that is material to stockholders.

Effects of Inflation
We do not believe that inflation has had a material impact on our business, revenues or operating results during the periods presented.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in the notes to our consolidated financial statements included herein for the year ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectfully.

Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements

During the year ended December 31, 2017, we early adopted the new lease accounting standards issued by the FASB ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. This ASU
establishes a right-of-use (ROU) model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than
12 months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement. This
ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. A modified retrospective transition
approach is required for lessees for capital and operating leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the
financial statements, with certain practical expedients available. The impact of adopting this standard resulted in an ROU and lease liability on the consolidated
balance sheet of approximately $4MM.

We do not believe that any other recently issued, but not yet effective accounting pronouncements, if adopted, would have a material effect on our consolidated
financial statements.

Inventories and Provision for Excess or Expired Inventory

Inventories consist of tea ingredients, packaging and finished goods and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market value. Provisions for
excess inventory are included in cost of goods sold and have historically been immaterial but adequate to provide for losses on its raw materials.

Long-lived Assets

Our long-lived assets consisted of property and equipment and customer relationships and are reviewed for impairment in accordance with the guidance of the
FASB Topic ASC 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. We test for impairment losses on long-lived assets used in operations whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, we had not
recognized impairment losses on our long-lived assets as management determined that there were no indicators that a carrying amount of the asset may not be
recoverable.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and accounts receivables. We place our cash
with high credit quality financial institutions. At times such amounts may exceed federally insured limits. Receivables arising from sales of our products are not
collateralized. For the year ended December 31, 2017, three customers represented approximately 21.4% (9.9%, 6.3% and 5.2%) of net revenues. For the year
ended December 31, 2016, three customers represented approximately 27.5% (14.5%, 7.5% and 5.5%) of net revenues. As of December 31, 2017, three customers
represented 23.1% (10.5%, 6.7% and 5.9%) of accounts receivables. As of December 31, 2016, three customers represented approximately 24.9% (12.3%, 8.9%
and 8.2%) of accounts receivable.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of acquired businesses over the estimated fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill is not
amortized but is tested for impairment at least annually at the reporting unit level or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset
might be impaired. The goodwill impairment test is applied by performing a qualitative assessment before calculating the fair value of the reporting unit. If, on the
basis of qualitative factors, it is considered not more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying amount, further testing of
goodwill for impairment would not be required.

Intangible assets are recorded at acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Definite lived intangible assets are amortized over their estimated
useful life using the straight-line method, which is determined by identifying the period over which the cash flows from the asset are expected to be generated.
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Share-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensation to employees in accordance with FASB ASC 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation. Stock-based compensation to
employees is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense over the requisite employee service period. We account
for stock-based compensation to other than employees in accordance with FASB ASC 505-50. Equity instruments issued to other than employees are valued at the
earlier of a commitment date or upon completion of the services, based on the fair value of the equity instruments and is recognized as expense over the service
period. We estimate the fair value of stock-based payments using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for common stock options and warrants and the latest
fair market price of the Company’s common stock for common share issuances.

Acquisitions

We entered into an asset purchase agreement on May 20, 2016, which closed on June 30, 2016 (“Closing Date”), whereby we acquired substantially all of the
operating assets of New Age Beverages, LLC, New Age Properties, LLC, Aspen Pure, LLC and Xing Beverage, LLC (collectively, “Xing”), which are companies
engaged in the manufacture and sale of various teas and beverages. The transaction was disclosed in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 23,
2016, and an amended Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the SEC on June 30, 2016. Upon the closing of the acquisition, we received substantially all of the
operating assets of Xing, consisting of inventory, fixed assets and intellectual property in exchange for an aggregate purchase price of $19,995,000, consisting of
$6,995,000 worth of our common stock, consisting of 4,353,915 shares of common stock, $8,500,000 in cash, and a secured promissory note in an amount of
$4,500,000. The promissory note shall accrue interest of 1% per annum, beginning after six months from the Closing Date, and shall be secured by a second lien on
our assets. The shares of common stock issued pursuant to the acquisition are subject to an additional leak out provision, which states that upon the date that is six
months after Closing Date, the holders of the shares may only sell up to fifteen percent of the shares held by such shareholder each calendar quarter for an
additional twelve month period, meaning that the leak out provision will expire 18 months from the closing of the acquisition.

On March 31, 2017, the Company acquired the assets of Maverick Brands, LLC (“Maverick”). Maverick is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of coconut
water and other beverages, which will help the Company expand its capabilities and product offering. The operating results of Maverick have been consolidated
with those of the Company beginning April 1, 2017. Total purchase consideration paid was $11,086,000, which consisted of $2,000,000 of cash and 2,200,000
shares of common stock valued at $9,086,000.

On May 18, 2017, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement whereby the Company acquired substantially all of the operating assets of Premier
Micronutrient Corporation, a subsidiary of PMC Holdings, Inc. (“PMC”), which is a company engaged in the business of developing, manufacturing, selling and
marketing micronutrient products and formulations. On May 23, 2017, the parties executed the Bill of Sale and Assignment and Assumption Agreement for the
acquisition.

On March 23, 2017, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement whereby the Company agreed to acquire substantially all of the operating assets of
Marley, which is a company engaged in the development, manufacturing, selling and marketing of nonalcoholic relaxation teas and sparkling waters, and ready to
drink coffee drinks. The consideration for the acquisition was amended pursuant to an amendment to the asset purchase agreement dated June 9, 2017. The
acquisition closed on June 13, 2017.

Capital Expenditures

Other Capital Expenditures

We expect to incur research and development costs, as well as marketing expenses in connection with the expansion of our business and the development of our

products.
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Future Contractual Obligations and Commitment
We incur contractual obligations and financial commitments in the normal course of our operations and financing activities. Contractual obligations include future
cash payments required under existing contracts, such as debt and lease agreements. These obligations may result from both general financing activities and from

commercial arrangements that are directly supported by related operating activities.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, we have no future contractual obligations or commitments, other than lease and debt payments as defined in the
Company’s balance sheet.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, we have not entered into any transaction, agreement or other contractual arrangement with an entity
unconsolidated under which it has:

e aretained or contingent interest in assets transferred to the unconsolidated entity or similar arrangement that serves as credit;

e liquidity or market risk support to such entity for such assets;

e an obligation, including a contingent obligation, under a contract that would be accounted for as a derivative instrument; or

e an obligation, including a contingent obligation, arising out of a variable interest in an unconsolidated entity that is held by, and material to us, where
such entity provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to or engages in leasing, hedging, or research and development services
with us.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As a “smaller reporting company” as defined by Item 10 of Regulation S-K, the Company is not required to provide information required by this Item.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of New Age Beverages Corporation

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of New Age Beverages Corporation (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2017, and the
related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements™). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended
December 31, 2017, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial statements
based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were
we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/'s/ Accell Audit & Compliance, P.A.

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2016 .

Tampa, Florida

April 17,2018
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Prepaid expenses, long-term

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
Security deposit

Right-of-use asset

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Contingent consideration
Lease liability, current
Current portion of notes payable

Total current liabilities

Notes payable, net of unamortized discounts and current portion

Lease liability, net of current portion

Related party debt, net of unamortized discount

Total liabilities

December 31,

December 31,

2017 2016
$ 285245 $ 529,088
7,462,065 4,729,356
7,041,775 4,420,632
1,435,058 326,846
16,224,143 10,005,922
504,355 -
1,894,820 7,286,201
197,515 -
4,064,883 -
21,230,212 4,895,241
__23.556251 4,538,674
$ 67,672,179 $ 26,726,038
$ 4370491 § 4415043
2,276,638 2,465,526
800,000 -
239,079 -
__ 3427,051 4,562,179
11,113,259 11,442,748
- 10,374,675
3,820,865 -
) - 29,961
14,934,124 21,847,384




COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 10)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized; 35,171,419 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 35,171 21,900
2017 and 21,900,106 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2016
Series A Preferred stock, $0.001 par value: 250,000 shares authorized, 0 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, - 250
2017 and 250,000 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2016
Series B Preferred stock, $0.001 par value: 300,000 shares authorized, 169,234 shares issued and outstanding at December 169 285
31,2017 and 284,807 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2016
63,203,598 11,821,176

Additional paid-in capital

. (10,500,383 . (6,964,957
Accumulated deficit ) )

52,738,055 4,878,654

Total stockholders’ equity

67,672,179 26,726,038

e
e

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
§ 52,188,295 § 25,301,806
REVENUES, net
39,788,384 19,505,580
Cost of Goods Sold
_ 12399911 5,796,226
GROSS PROFIT
OPERATING EXPENSES:
3,840,332 1,584,104
Adpvertising, promotion and selling
13,940,583 6,367,606
General and administrative
_ 668,049 1,471,273
Legal and professional
18,448,964 9,422,983
Total operating expenses
_ (6,049,053 (3,626,757
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS ) )
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
(228,039 (299,080
Interest expense ) )
(698,899 -
Other expense )
_ 3,440,065 292,758
Other income
2,513,127 (6,322
Total other income (expense), net )
$§ (3535926 § (3,633,079
NET LOSS ) )
$ 0.12 $ (0.19
NET LOSS PER SHARE — BASIC AND DILUTED ) )

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Balance at December 31, 2015

Issuance of common stock in
connection with Xing acquisition
Issuance of common stock in
connection with services provided
Restricted stock awards issued

to employees
Exercise of warrants
Issuance of warrants

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2016

Issuance of common stock in
connection with public offering
Issuance of common stock in
connection with the acquisition of
Maverick Brands, LLC

Issuance of common stock in
connection with the acquisition of
Marley Beverages, LLC

Issuance of common stock in
connection with the acquisition of
Premier Micronutrient Corporation

Issuance of common stock in
connection with services provided

Restricted stock awards issued to
employees

Share-based compensation
employee stock option plan

Recession of Series A Preferred
Shares

Conversion of of Series B Preferred
Stock

Exercise of warrants

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2017

NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Additional
Common Stock Series A Preferred Stock Series B Preferred Stock Paid-in Accumulated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Total
15,435,651 § 15,436 250,000 $ 250 254,807 255 3,811,049 (3,331,878 $ 495,112
)
4,353,915 4,354 - - - - 6,990,646 - 6,995,000
1,296,757 1,296 - . 30,000 30 726,454 - 727,780
771,783 772 - - - - 253,916 - 254,688
42,000 42 - - - - 20,958 - 21,000
- - - - - - 18,153 - 18,153
. B} - B - - - (3,633,079 (3,633,079
) )
21,900,106 . 21,900 250,000 . 250 284,807 285 . 11,821,176 (6,964,957 4,878,654
)
4,928,571 4,929 - - - - 15,394,034 - 15,398,963
2,200,000 2,200 - . - . 9,083,800 - 9,086,000
3,000,000 3,000 - - - . 18,597,000 - 18,600,000
1,200,000 1,200 - - - - 5,494,800 - 5,496,000
395,184 395 - - - . 1,985,659 - 1,986,054
250,000 250 - - - - 514,750 515,000
- - - - - - 162,374 - 162,374
- - (250,000 (250 - - 250 - -
924,584 924 - - (115,573 (116 (808 - -
372,974 373 - - - - 150,563 - 150,936
- - - - - - - _(3.535.926 (3.535.926
) )
35,171,419 § 35,171 - 8 - 169,234 169 $_63,203,598 $ (10,500,883 $_ 52,738,055
B b B - E

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net loss

NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expense
Amortization of debt discount
Amortization of intangible assets
Share-based compensation
Gain on sale from building
Bad debt expense
Accrued acquisition costs
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Net change in right-of-use leased asset

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment
Business acquisitions, net of cash received

Proceeds from sale of the building

Net cash provided by (used in) investment activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings on notes payable and bank indebtedness

Proceeds from convertible note payable

Year Ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,

2017 2016

(3,535,926  $ (3,633,079
)
577,895 183,622
98,575 46,940
1,028,443 340,126
1,731,240 982,468
(3,272,653 -
63,257 -
- 753,857
(2,363,882 1,157,932
(299,632 623,005
(465,543 192,389
(4,939 -
(1,778,723 327,916
(188,889 -
(8410.777 975,176
(562,570 (47,198
(2,000,000 ) (8,500,000
8,789,991 : ) -
6227421 (8,547,198
.

2,000,000 10,700,000
- 200,000

(110,663



Net factoring advances )

150,936 21,000
Exercise of stock warrant
15,398,963 -
Issuance of common stock in connection with public offering
(29,961 -
Repayment of notes payable to related party )
_ (15,580,425 (2,753,083
Repayment of notes payable and capital lease obligations ) ) ) )
_ 1,939,513 8,057,254
Net cash provided by financing activities B B
(243,843 485,232
NET CHANGE IN CASH )
_ 529,088 43,856
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD - -
285,245 529,088

nes
e

CASH AT END OF PERIOD

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

On April 1, 2015, American Brewing acquired the assets of B&R Liquid Adventure, which included the brand, Bicha Live Kombucha. Prior to acquiring the
Bucha Live Kombucha brand and business, we were a craft brewery operation. In April 2016, new management assumed daily operation of the business, and began
the implementation of a new vision for the Company. In May 2016 we changed our name to Bucha, Inc. (“Bucha”), and then on June 30, 2016, we acquired the
combined assets of “Xing” including Xing Beverage, LLC, New Age Beverages, LLC, Aspen Pure, LLC, and New Age Properties. We then shut down all
California operations where Blicha was based, relocated the Company’s operational headquarters to Denver, Colorado, and changed our name to New Age
Beverages Corporation. On October 1, 2016, we then sold American Brewing including their brewery, brewery assets and its related liabilities to focus exclusively
on the healthy beverages. We recognized the sale of our brewery and brewery operations as a discontinued operation beginning in the third quarter of 2016, and
ultimately concluded the transaction in February 2017. In February 2017, we uplisted onto The NASDAQ Capital Market. In March 2017, we acquired the assets
of Maverick Brands, including their brand Coco-Libre. In June 2017, we acquired the assets of Premier Micronutrient Corporation (“PMC”), and also completed
the acquisition of the Marley Beverage Company (“Marley”) including the brand licensing rights to all Marley brand ready to drink beverages.

We have three wholly-owned subsidiaries, NABC, Inc., NABC Properties, LLC (“NABC Properties”), and New Age Health Sciences. NABC, Inc. is our
Colorado-based operating company that consolidates performance and financial results of our divisions. NABC Properties incorporates all our buildings and
warehouses, and New Age Health Sciences includes all our patents, and the operating performance in the medical and hospital channels.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the prior periods presented have been reclassified to conform to the current period financial statement presentation. These reclassifications have
no effect on previously reported net income.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements and related footnotes have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (or U.S. GAAP) and with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (or SEC) instructions for the Form 10-K.

Principles of Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all majority-owned subsidiary companies. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The more significant estimates and assumptions
made by management include allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory valuation, provision for excess or expired inventory, depreciation of property and
equipment, realizability of long-lived assets, allowance for sales returns and chargebacks, estimated cash flows in the acquisitions, and fair market value of equity
instruments issued for goods or services. The current economic environment has increased the degree and uncertainty inherent in these estimates and assumptions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 included cash on-hand. Cash equivalents are considered all accounts with an original maturity date
within 90 days.

Accounts Receivable
The Company’s accounts receivable primarily consists of trade receivables. The Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts that is based on historical
trends, customer knowledge, any known disputes, and the aging of the accounts receivable balances combined with management’s estimate of future potential

recoverability. Receivables are written off against the allowance after all attempts to collect a receivable have failed. The Company’s allowance for doubtful
accounts was $52,345 as of December 31, 2017 and $46,350 as of December 31, 2016.
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and accounts receivables. The Company
places its cash with high credit quality financial institutions. At times such amounts may exceed federally insured limits.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, three customers represented approximately 21.4% (9.9%, 6.3% and 5.2%) of net revenues. For the year ended December
31, 2016, three customers represented approximately 27.5% (14.5%, 7.5% and 5.5%) of net revenues. As of December 31, 2017, three customers represented
23.1% (10.5%, 6.7% and 5.9%) of accounts receivables. As of December 31, 2016, three customers represented approximately 29.4% (12.3%, 8.9% and 8.2%) of
accounts receivable.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of the financial instruments, which principally include cash, trade receivables, accounts payable and accrued expenses, approximates fair
value due to the relative short maturity of such instruments. The carrying amount of the Company’s debt approximates its fair value as it bears interest at market
rates of interest after taking into consideration the debt discounts.

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under U.S. GAAP and enhances disclosures
about fair value measurements. Fair value is defined under ASC 820 as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit
price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.
Valuation techniques used to measure fair value under ASC 820 must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The
standard describes a fair-value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be
used to measure fair value as follows:

Level 1 —Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 —Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in
markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or
liabilities.

Level 3 —Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The following tables set forth the fair value of the Company’s contingent provision as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

December 31, 2017

Level I Level 11 Level 111 Total

(in thousands)

Contingent Provision:
$ - 8 - 8 800 $ 800
Earn-out attributable to Marley acquisition

$ - 8 - 8 800 $ 800
Total contingent provision

December 31, 2016

Level I Level 11 Level 111 Total

(in thousands)

Contingent Provision:

Earn-out attributable to Marley acquisition

Total contingent provision



There were no transfers between levels within the fair value hierarchy during the periods presented.




NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill and Customer Relationships

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of acquired businesses over the estimated fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill and other
intangibles with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but tested for impairment annually or more frequently when events or circumstances indicates that the
carrying value of a reporting unit more likely than not exceeds its fair value. The goodwill impairment test is applied by performing a qualitative assessment before
calculating the fair value of the reporting unit. If, on the basis of qualitative factors, it is considered not more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit
is less than the carrying amount, further testing of goodwill for impairment would not be required. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds the reporting
unit’s fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess, limited to the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. The
Company performed a qualitative assessment and determined there was no impairment of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Intangible assets are recorded at acquisition fair value as part of the acquisitions. The balance as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is reflected net of accumulated
amortization. Definite lived intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life using the straight-line method, which is determined by identifying the
period over which the cash flows from the asset are expected to be generated, typically 15 to 42 years. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016 accumulated
amortization was $1,368,568 and $340,126, respectively. Amortization expense was $1,028,443 and $340,126 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets consisted of property and equipment and customer relationships and are reviewed for impairment in accordance with the guidance of the ASC
360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. The Company tests for impairment losses on long-lived assets used in operations whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, the Company
had not experienced impairment losses on the long-lived assets as management determined that there were no indicators that the carrying amount of the asset may
not be recoverable.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share--based compensation to employees in accordance with ASC 718 Compensation—Stock Compensation. Share - based
compensation to employees is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense over the requisite employee service
period. The Company accounts for share-based compensation to other than employees in accordance with Financial Standards Accounting Board (FASB) ASC
505--50. Equity instruments issued to other than employees are valued at the earlier of a commitment date or upon completion of the services, based on the fair
value of the equity instruments and is recognized as expense over the service period. The Company estimates the fair value of share -based payments using
the Black-Scholes option- pricing model for common stock options and warrants and the latest fair market price of the Company’s common stock for common
share issuances. The Company has not experienced any forfeitures and does not expect forfeitures.

Included in prepaid expenses as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are prepaid share-based compensation of approximately $1,000,000 and $-, of which

approximately $500,000 and $- are presented as long-term on the consolidated balance sheets under the caption Prepaid Expenses, long-term. These amounts
represent the prepaid compensation to employees and certain non-employees for services rendered.
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories and Provision for Excess or Expired Inventory

Inventories consist of tea ingredients, packaging and finished goods and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market value. Provisions for
excess inventory are included in cost of goods sold and have historically been immaterial but adequate to provide for losses on its raw materials. There was no
reserve for obsolescence as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists primarily of brewing equipment and are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based upon the
estimated useful lives of the underlying assets, generally five years. Major renewals and betterments that extend the life of the property are capitalized.
Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s products are distributed in major health and grocery chains throughout North America. Revenue is recognized upon delivery of goods to the
customer. An allowance for estimated returns is provided at the time of the sale. In accordance with the guidance in FASB Topic ASC 605, Revenue Recognition ,
the Company recognizes revenue when (a) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (b) delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, (c) the fee is
fixed or determinable, and (d) collectability is reasonable assured.

Customer Programs and Incentives

Customer programs and incentives, which include customer promotional discount programs and customer incentives, are a common practice in the beverage
industry. The Company incurs customer program costs to promote sales of products and to maintain competitive pricing. Amounts paid in connection with
customer programs and incentives are recorded as reductions to net revenue or as advertising, promotional and selling expenses in accordance with ASC Topic
605-50, Revenue Recognition—Customer Payments and Incentives , based on the nature of the expenditure.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold mainly consisted of raw material costs, packaging costs and direct labor. Costs are recognized when the related revenue is recorded. Shipping
and handling costs for all wholesale sales transactions are billed to the customer and are included in costs of goods sold for all periods presented.

Advertising, Promotions and Sales

Advertising, promotional and selling expenses consisted of sales salaries, tap handles, media advertising costs, sales and marketing expenses, and promotional
activity expenses and are recognized when incurred in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses consisted of professional service fees, rent and utility expenses, meals, travel and entertainment expenses, and other general

and administrative overhead costs. Expenses are recognized when incurred.
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes pursuant to the provisions of ASC 740, Income Taxes , whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
and the future tax benefits derived from operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. The Company provides a valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets when
it is more likely than not that such deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company has a valuation allowance against 100% of the net deferred tax assets.

ASC 740 requires that the Company recognize in the consolidated financial statements the effect of a tax position that is more likely than not to be sustained upon
examination based on the technical merits of the position. The first step is to determine whether or not a tax benefit should be recognized. A tax benefit will be
recognized if the weight of available evidence indicates that the tax position is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the relevant tax
authorities. The recognition and measurement of benefits related to our tax positions requires significant judgment as uncertainties often exist with respect to new
laws, new interpretations of existing laws, and rulings by taxing authorities. Differences between actual results and our assumptions, or changes in our assumptions
in future periods, are recorded in the period they become known. For tax liabilities, the Company recognizes accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions as a
component of income tax expense, and penalties, if incurred, are recognized as a component of operating expense.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average common shares outstanding. Diluted net income per share is
calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-average common shares outstanding during the period using the treasury stock method or the two-class method,
whichever is more dilutive. As the Company incurred net losses for the periods ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 no potentially dilutive securities were
included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share as the impact would have been anti-dilutive. Therefore, basic and dilutive net income (loss) per share were
the same. If the Company had net income, potential dilutive securities consist of warrants to purchase zero and 1,127,000 shares of common stock as of December
31,2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, as a new Topic, ASC Topic 606. The new revenue recognition
standard provides a five-step analysis of transactions to determine when and how revenue is recognized. The core principle is that a company should recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers: Deferral of the Effective
Date, which deferred the effective date of the new revenue standard for periods beginning after December 15, 2016 to December 15, 2017, with early adoption
permitted but not earlier than the original effective date. This ASU must be applied retrospectively to each period presented or as a cumulative-effect adjustment as
of the date of adoption. The Company is considering the alternatives of adoption of this ASU and is conducting its review of the likely impact to the existing
portfolio of customer contracts entered into prior to adoption. After completing its review, the Company will continue to evaluate the effect of adopting this
guidance upon the Company results of operations, cash flows and financial position. Currently, the Company does not expect the adoption of this ASU to have a
material impact on its financial statements except that there are significant additional reporting requirements under the new standard.
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016--02, Leases. This ASU establishes a right--of--use (ROU) model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset
and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification
affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim
periods within those fiscal years. A modifiedretrospective transition approach is required for lessees for capital and operating leases existing at, or entered into
after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements, with certain practical expedients available. During the year ended
December 31, 2017 management elected to early adopt the guidance under ASU 2016--02. Management’s decision was based on the stock price during the year
would most likely result in the Company entering into and being designated an accelerated filer by June 30, 2019, which would result in management having to
restate the financial statements to reflect the adoption of the new standard.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). This ASU is related to reporting revenue gross versus net, or
principal versus agent considerations. This ASU is meant to clarify the guidance in ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, as it pertains to
principal versus agent considerations. Specifically, the guidance addresses how entities should identify goods and services being provided to a customer, the unit of
account for a principal versus agent assessment, how to evaluate whether a good or service is controlled before being transferred to a customer, and how to assess
whether an entity controls services performed by another party. This ASU has the same effective date as the new revenue standard, which is effective for fiscal
years, and for interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company is evaluating the effect and methodology of adopting
this new accounting guidance upon the Company results of operations, cash flows and financial position. The Company has begun to consider the alternatives of
adoption of this ASU, and has started its review of the likely impact to the existing portfolio of customer contracts entered into prior to adoption. The Company
will also continue to evaluate the effect of adopting this guidance upon its results of operations, cash flows and financial position. Currently, the Company does not
expect the adoption of this ASU to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements except that there are significant additional reporting
requirements under the new standard.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718). This ASU is related to simplifications of employee share-based
payment accounting. This pronouncement eliminates the APIC pool concept and requires that excess tax benefits and tax deficiencies be recorded in the income
statement when awards are settled. The pronouncement also addresses simplifications related to statement of cash flows classification, accounting for forfeitures
and minimum statutory tax withholding requirements. This ASU is effective for fiscal years, and for interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after
December 15, 2016. This ASU does not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements based on management's conclusion.




NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-10, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing. This
ASU is meant to clarify the guidance in FASB ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Specifically, the guidance addresses an entity’s
identification of its performance obligations in a contract, as well as an entity’s evaluation of the nature of its promise to grant a license of intellectual property and
whether or not that revenue is recognized over time or at a point in time. This ASU has the same effective date as the new revenue standard, which is effective for
fiscal years, and for interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company is considering the alternatives of adoption of this
ASU and will continue to review the likely impact to the existing portfolio of customer contracts entered into prior to adoption. The Company will continue to
evaluate the effect of adopting this guidance upon its results of operations, cash flows and financial position. The Company does not expect the adoption of this
ASU to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements except that there are significant additional reporting requirements under the new standard.

In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-11, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605) and Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Rescission of SEC Guidance Because
of Accounting Standards Updates 2014-09 and 2014-16 Pursuant to Staff Announcements at the March 3, 2016 EITF Meeting. This ASU rescinds SEC paragraphs
pursuant to two SEC Staff Announcements at the March 3, 2016 Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) meeting. Specifically, registrants should not rely on the
following SEC Staff Observer comments upon adoption of Topic 606: (1) Revenue and Expense Recognition for Freight Services in Process, which is codified in
paragraph 605-20-S99-2; (2) Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs, which is codified in paragraph 605-45-S99-1; (3) Accounting for
Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (including Reseller of the Vendor’s Products), which is codified in paragraph 605-50-S99-1; and (4) Accounting
for Gas-Balancing Arrangements (i.e., use of the “entitlements method”), which is codified in paragraph 932-10-S99-5. This ASU becomes effective upon
adoption of ASU 2014-09, which is effective for fiscal years, and for interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company
has not yet begun to consider the alternatives of adoption of this ASU or its impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-12, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients. This
ASU does not change the core principle of the guidance in Topic 606. Instead, the amendments provide clarifying guidance in a few narrow areas and add some
practical expedients to the guidance. This ASU has the same effective date as the new revenue standard, which is effective for fiscal years, and for interim periods
within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of this new standard on its
consolidated financial statements. The Company is considering the alternatives of adoption of this ASU. Currently, the Company does not expect the adoption of
this ASU to have a material impact on its financial statements except that there are significant additional reporting requirements under the new standard.
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. The new
guidance is intended to reduce diversity in practice in how transactions are classified in the statement of cash flows. This ASU is effective for fiscal years, and for
interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this
ASU on its consolidated financial statements and currently the Company has determined there to be no impact of this ASU on its financial statements and related
disclosures.

In January 2017, the FASB issued 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. The amendments in this
ASU simplify the subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test and eliminating the requirement for a reporting
unit with a zero or negative carrying amount to perform a qualitative assessment. Instead, under this pronouncement, an entity would perform its annual, or interim,
goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount and would recognize an impairment change for the amount by
which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value; however, the loss recognized is not to exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that
reporting unit. In addition, income tax effects will be considered, if applicable. This ASU is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years,
beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on its consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.

NOTE 2 - GOING CONCERN AND MANAGEMENT’S LIQUIDITY PLANS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern, which contemplates, among
other things, the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. Since inception, the Company has financed its operations
primarily through equity and debt financings. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had an accumulated deficit of $10,500,883 and $6,964,957 (all of
which was attributed to the losses of Bucha, Inc., and one-time expenses associated with the integration and up-listing onto the NASDAQ exchange and
acquisitions of Maverick, PMC, Marley during the year ended December 31, 2017 and Xing during the year ended December 31, 2016). For the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, cash flows from operating activities were ($8,410,777) and $975,176.

The 2017 acquisitions of Maverick, PMC and Marley (see Note 4) required significant cash outlays for integration and operations. Management continues to raise
proceeds through the issuance of equity shares. See Note 18, Subsequent Events. With the additional proceeds received from the April 2018 equity financing, the
Company believes that its current operations combined with its current cash at December 31, 2017 will be sufficient to meet the Company’s operating liquidity,
capital expenditure and debt repayment requirements for at least the next one year from the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 3 - ACQUISITION OF XING BEVERAGE, LLC

On June 30, 2016, the Company acquired the assets of New Age Beverage, LLC, New Age Properties, LLC, Aspen Pure, LLC, and Xing Beverage, LLC
(collectively, Xing). Xing is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of various teas and beverages, which will help the Company expand its capabilities and product
offering. The operating results of Xing have been consolidated with those of the Company beginning July 1, 2016. Total purchase consideration paid was
$19,995,000, which consisted of $8,500,000 of cash, a note payable for $4,500,000 and 4,353,915 shares of common stock. The common stock issued was valued
at $1.61 per share, which was the volume weighted average closing stock for the thirty days preceding the acquisition.
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - ACQUISITION OF XING BEVERAGE, LLC (continued)

The purchase price was allocated to the net assets acquired based on their estimated fair values as follows:

$ 8,500,000
Cash
4,500,000
Seller’s note
_ 6,995,000
Stock
$ 19,995,000
Purchase price
$ 5,627,669
Accounts receivable
4,847,417
Inventories
492,972
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
7,418,789
Property and equipment, net
4,628,300
Other intangible assets acquired (customer lists)
___ (1,526,874
Assumption of accounts payable, accrued expenses, other current liabilities and mortgage note payable )
15,488,773
. 4,506,227
Goodwill -_—
$

19,995,000

The acquisition was consummated on June 30, 2016, and as such, the Company assessed the fair value of the various net assets acquired. The Company identified
other intangible assets, such as customer lists that were recognized apart from goodwill, and recorded at fair value.

The $4,506,227 of goodwill currently recognized is deductible for income tax purposes over the next fifteen years.

In connection with the acquisition of Xing Beverage, LLC, the Company incurred transactional costs totaling $1,714,463, which has been recognized as expense as
of December 31, 2016. Of these costs, $1,326,108 was included in legal and professional fee expense and $388,355 was included in general and administrative
expenses. Legal and professional fee expense includes the Company issuing a total of 167,994 shares of common stock to several consultants for transactional
services provided. The shares were fair valued at $1.61 per share. The balance represents legal and professional fees incurred that have or are going to be paid in
cash. The general and administrative expense of $388,355 was pursuant to an employment agreement entered into during the first quarter of 2016, whereby an
officer earned 1,078,763 shares of common stock upon the consummation of the Xing acquisition. These shares were fair valued at $0.36 per share, which is the
Company’s traded stock price when entering into the employment agreement.
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 - 2017 ACQUISITIONS
Maverick Brands, LLC

On March 31, 2017, the Company acquired all of the assets of Maverick Brands, LLC (“Maverick”). Maverick is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of coconut
water and other beverages, which will help the Company expand its capabilities and product offering. The operating results of Maverick have been consolidated
with those of the Company beginning April 1, 2017. Total purchase consideration paid was $11,086,000, which consisted of $2,000,000 of cash and 2,200,000
shares of common stock valued at $9,086,000. The common stock issued was valued at $4.13 per share, which was the closing stock on the date of the acquisition.
The Acquisition was subject to customary closing conditions. All of the goodwill was assigned to the Company’s Brands segment. All of the goodwill and
intangible assets recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. The fair value of the customer list was valued using the income approach, as the
Company obtained an independent third-party valuation. In addition, the market approach was utilized to determine the fair value of the trade name and recipes.

The purchase price was allocated to the net assets acquired based on their estimated fair values as follows:

$ 2,000,000
Cash
9,086,000
Stock
$ 11,086,000
Purchase price
$ 245,426
Accounts receivable
1,523,413
Inventories
211,213
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
68,282
Property and equipment, net
6,660,441
Other intangible assets acquired (trade names, recipes and customer lists)
(1,201,254
Accounts payable and accrued expenses )
___ (1,570,952
Assumption of note payable )
5,936,569
_ 5,149,431
Goodwill

IR

11,086,000
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 -2017 ACQUISITIONS (continued)

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the preliminary fair value of the underlying net tangible and identifiable intangible assets. In accordance with
applicable accounting standards, goodwill is not amortized but instead is tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently if certain indicators are present.

In connection with the acquisition of Maverick, the Company incurred transactional costs totaling $231,925, which has been recognized as expense for the year
ended December 31, 2017. These costs have been reflected in other expenses.

PMC Holdings, Inc.

On May 18, 2017, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) whereby the Company acquired substantially all of the operating
assets of Premier Micronutrient Corporation, a subsidiary of PMC Holdings, Inc. (“PMC”), which is a company engaged in the business of developing,
manufacturing, selling and marketing micronutrient products and formulations (the “Acquisition”). On May 23, 2017 (the “Closing Date”), the parties executed the
Bill of Sale and Assignment and Assumption Agreement for the Acquisition.

Upon the Closing Date, the Company received substantially all of the operating assets of PMC, consisting of fixed assets and intellectual property in exchange for
a purchase price of 1,200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The shares were fair valued at $4.58 per share. The Company also agreed to assume various
accounts payable and accrued liabilities of PMC. The shares of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the Acquisition will be restricted under Rule 144. The
Acquisition was subject to customary closing conditions. All of the goodwill was assigned to the Company’s Brands segment. All of the goodwill and intangible
assets recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. The fair value of the patents were valued using the market approach, as the Company
obtained an independent third-party valuation.

The purchase price was allocated to the net assets acquired based on their estimated fair values as follows:

$ 5,496,000
Stock )
$ 5,496,000
Purchase price )
2,256
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
55,023
Property and equipment, net
4,100,000
Patents 1,767,588
(27,772
Accounts payable )
(401,095
Assumption of notes payable ) )
3,728,412
1,767,588
Goodwill - —

e

5,496,000
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 - 2017 ACQUISITIONS (continued)
In connection with the acquisition of PMC, the Company incurred minimal transactional costs, which has been recognized as expense as of the closing date.
Marley Beverage Company, LLC

On March 23, 2017, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement (the “APA”) whereby the Company agreed to acquire substantially all of the operating
assets of Marley Beverage Company, LLC (“Marley”), which is a company engaged in the development, manufacturing, selling and marketing of nonalcoholic
relaxation teas and sparkling waters, and ready to drink coffee drinks. The consideration for the Acquisition was amended pursuant to an Amendment to the APA
dated June 9, 2017. The Acquisition closed on June 13, 2017.

At closing, the Company received substantially all of the operating assets of Marley, consisting of inventory, accounts receivable, fixed assets and intellectual
property in exchange for a purchase price of 3,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, as well as an earn out payment of $1,250,000 in cash if the gross
revenues of the Marley business during any trailing twelve calendar month period after the closing are equal to or greater than $15,000,000. The earnout, if
applicable, will be paid as $625,000 on or before the 15th day after the end of the first trailing twelve calendar month period in which the earnout condition is
satisfied, $312,500 not later than the first anniversary of the initial earnout payment, and $312,500 not later than the second anniversary of the initial earnout
payment. The fair value of the earnout was valued using the weighted average return on asset. The shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to the Acquisition
have not been registered, but the holders have piggyback registration rights, as well as demand registration rights, with the demand registration rights beginning
twelve months from the Closing Date. The Acquisition was subject to customary closing conditions. The shares were fair valued at $6.20 per share. All of the
goodwill was assigned to the Company’s Brands segment. All of the goodwill and intangible assets recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes. The fair value of the customer list was valued using the cost approach, as the Company obtained an independent third-party valuation. In addition, the
market approach was utilized to determine the fair value of the trade name and recipes.

The purchase price was allocated to the net assets acquired based on their estimated fair values as follows:

§ 18,600,000
Stock
_ 800,000
Contingent consideration
Purchase price
$ 186,658
Accounts receivable
798,098
Inventories
198,882
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
22,191
Property and equipment, net
9,281,365
Other intangible assets acquired (trade names, recipes and customer lists)
(505,146
Accounts payable and accrued expenses )
9,982,048
Goodwill

e

19,400,000
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 - 2017 ACQUISITIONS (continued)

In connection with the acquisition of Marley, the Company incurred minimal transactional costs, which has been recognized as expense as of the closing date.

Pro forma:

The following unaudited pro forma financial results reflects the historical operating results of the Company, including the unaudited pro forma results of Xing
Group, Maverick, PMC and Marley for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, as if Xing Group, Maverick, PMC and Marley were acquired

on January 1, 2016. No adjustments have been made for synergies that are resulting and planned from the acquisitions. These combined results are not indicative of
the results that may have been achieved had the companies been combined as of such dates or periods, or of the Company’s consolidated future operating results.

For the year For the year
ended ended
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)

$ 56,144,428 $§ 70,699,047

Revenues
(7,497,397 (17,562,676
Net loss from continuing operations ) )
$ 022 $ (0.51
Net loss per share — Basic and diluted ) )
34,330,520 34,330,520

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding — Basic and Dilutive

The decline in revenues on a pro forma basis resulted from changes in strategic shifts by the former owners. Those changes in monetization resulted in declining
revenues.

NOTE 5 - INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of brewing materials, tea ingredients, bulk packaging and finished goods. The cost elements of work in process and finished goods inventory
consist of raw materials and direct labor. Provisions for excess inventory are included in cost of goods sold and have historically been immaterial but adequate to
provide for losses on its raw materials. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on the first-in, first-out basis, or market.

Inventories consisted of the following as of:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016

$ 6,302,265 $ 3,962,050
Finished goods
739,510 458,582

Raw materials

(R<c)

7,041,775 $ 4,420,632
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consisted of the following as of:

December 31,

December 31,

2017 2016
$ 6,444,126 $ 4,878,800
Customer relationships
4,100,000 -
Patents
3,530,000 -
Recipes
5,990,252 -
License agreements
4,860,441 -
Trade name
___ (1,368,568 (340,126
Less: accumulated amortization )
23,556,251 $ 4,538,674

e

Amortization expense was $1,028,443 and $340,126 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Intangible assets are recorded at their fair
market value. Amortization expense is computed on a straightline basis from 15 to 42 years, which was determined to be the useful life.

As of December 31, 2017, amortization expense for the next five years for the above intangibles are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, Amount
2018 $ 1,387,985
2019 1,387,985
2020 1,387,985
2021 1,387,985
2022 1,387,985
Thereafter 16,616,326
Total $ 23,556,251
NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The Company's property and equipment consisted of the following as of:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ 518,293 $ 6,070,000
Land and building
1,226,053 963,474
Trucks and coolers
913,053 509,064
Other property and equipment
(762,579 (256,337
Less: accumulated depreciation )
$ 1,894,820 $ 7,286,201

Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $577,895 and $183,622 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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NOTE 8 - NOTES PAYABLE, CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLE AND CAPITAL LEASES
Notes payable consisted of the following as of:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016

$ 2,000,000 $ 5,650,000
Revolving note payable due bank

1,472,051 -
Series B notes assumed from the Maverick Acquisition
- 4,754,636
Note payable due to bank — secured by building
- 4,500,000
Seller’s note payable
_ = 32,218
Note payable, net of unamortized discounts of $0 and $98,575 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively
3,427,051 14,936,854
(3.427,051 (4,562,179
Less: current portion ) )
- 10,374,675

nesn
nes

Long-term portion, net of unamortized discounts

In connection with the Acquisition of Xing, the Company entered into several notes payable with a bank and received proceeds of $10.7 million. One note payable
is for $4,800,000, bears interest at 4.04%, and is secured by the Company’s land and building. Principal and interest is payable in monthly installments of $25,495
through June 2021 at which time the unpaid principal balance is due. The other note payable is a revolving credit facility that allows borrows up to $5.9 million,
bears interest payable monthly at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 2.25% to 3.00% depending on the current ratio of payment obligations to earnings as defined
in the agreement, and is secured by the Company’s assets. The amount that may be borrowed under the revolving credit facility is based on the Company’s eligible
receivables, inventory and fixed assets, and is reduces by $50,000 each month beginning August 1, 2016 until the facility has been reduced down to $2,900,000.
The revolving credit facility matures on June 30, 2018. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, there are no available borrowings under the revolving credit facility.

The Company also issued a $4,500,000 note payable to a selling shareholder of Xing. This seller’s note bears interest, payable monthly, at 1% per year, beginning
after December 31, 2016. The loan matures on June 30, 2017.

On March 19, 2016, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with an unaffiliated third party, whereby the Company sold a Convertible
Promissory Note in an amount of $200,000. The purchaser also received a three-year Warrant to purchase 100,000 shares at an exercise price of $0.40 per share.
The Company has allocated the loan proceeds among the debt and the warrant based upon relative fair values. The relative fair value of the warrant was determined
to be $18,153.

In connection with the Acquisition of Maverick, the Company assumed Series B notes payable of $1,472,051. In addition, in connection with the public offering of
common stock in February 2017, proceeds were used to reduce the previously outstanding note balances. Monthly payments consist of interest only payments. The
loans are due December 2018.

On July 6, 2017 the Company entered into a revolving credit agreement with U.S. Bank National Association. Total borrowings were $2,000,000 and are subject to
borrowing base requirements per the agreement. The credit agreement bears interest at 2.5% plus Daily Reset LIBOR Rate. Currently, interest only payments of
approximately $7,000 monthly. The loan matures July 6, 2018 and the entire principal and outstanding interest payments are due. The revolving credit line is
subject to a fixed charged ratio financial covenant. The Company must maintain a fixed charged coverage ratio of at least 1:15 to 1:00. As of and for the year
ended December 31, 2017, the Company was in compliance with this financial covenant.

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY DEBT

Related Party debt consisted of the following as of:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ - 8 29,961
Related party debt, net of unamortized discounts of $0 and $36,331 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively
Less: current portion - -
$ - 8 29,961

Long-term portion, net of unamortized discount
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY DEBT (continued)

In March 2015, the Company borrowed $60,000 from a member of management. The note bears interest at 10% per annum and is due and payable beginning June
30, 2015 maturing on March 31, 2020. Payments of interest are required quarterly. The note was issued in conjunction with an equity payment totaling 53,073
shares of Series B preferred stock that was issued with the debt. The Company has allocated the loan proceeds among the debt and the stock based upon relative
fair values. The relative fair value of the stock was determined to be $42,742 and was recorded as a debt discount. The discount is being amortized over the life of
the loan to interest expense. As of December 31, 2016, no principal payment has been made on this note (but has since been paid in full in February 2017). No
amounts were outstanding as of December 31, 2017.

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Lease Commitments

On June 30, 2016, the Company assumed the lease commitments for the New Age Beverage, LLC (NAB) and Xing Beverage, LLC (Xing) when it acquired those
companies. The Colorado Springs property, previously leased by Xing, has a base rent of $14,000 per month plus common area expenses, with escalation clauses
over time. On January 10, 2017, the Company entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with an unaffiliated third party. Pursuant to the agreement, the
Company entered into a commitment to sell the property located at 1700 E 68th Avenue, Denver, CO 80229 for a purchase price of $8,900,000. The agreement
contains a lease back provision, whereby the Company leases the property for an initial term of ten years, with an option to extend for two successive five-year
periods. The Company recognized a gain on the sale of this property of $3,272,653 (as reflected on the Consolidated Statements of Operations under the caption
“Other Income”) for the year ended December 31, 2017. The Company early adopted the provisions of ASU 2016-02. The lease cost is $52,000 per month for the
initial year, with two percent annual increases. Management elected to early adopt ASU 2016-02, as a result, the Company recognized a Right-of-Use for the asset
of approximately $4,500,000 and a corresponding liability of a similar amount.

Future minimum lease payments under these facilities leases are approximately as follows:

$ 968,073
2018
820,800
2019
830,640
2020
840,000
2021
845,000
2022 )
$ 4,304,513
Thereafter h

Rent expense was $932,469 and $103,812 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Legal

In the normal course of business, the Company may be involved in legal proceedings, claims and assessments arising in the ordinary course of business. Such
matters are subject to many uncertainties, and outcomes are not predictable with assurance. There are no such matters that are deemed material to the consolidated
financial statements as of December 31, 2017.

NOTE 11 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, each having a par value of $0.001, with voting, distribution, dividend and redemption

rights, and liquidation preferences and conversions as designated by the board of directors.
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NOTE 11 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)

The board of directors has designated 250,000 shares as Series A Preferred stock, par value $.001 per share (“Series A Preferred”). Each share of Series A
Preferred shall have 500 votes for any election or other vote placed before the shareholders of the Company. During the year ended December 31, 2017, 250,000
shares of Series A Preferred stock was rescinded. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, zero and 250,000 shares of Series A Preferred are issued and outstanding.
The board of directors has designated 300,000 shares as Series B Preferred stock, par value $.001 per shares (“Series B Preferred”). The Series B Preferred is non-
voting, not eligible for dividends and ranks equal to common stock and below Series A preferred stock. Each share of Series B Preferred has a conversion rate into
eight shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, 169,234 and 284,807 shares of Series B Preferred are issued and outstanding. In January 2018,
all remaining 169,234 shares of Series B Preferred stock were converted into shares of common stock at a ratio of 8:1.

Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value.

Common stock issued for services

During the year ended December 31, 2017, shares of common stock were issued to employees and non-employees in connection with services rendered as follows:

e 245,000 shares were issued to employees for services rendered. The Company determined the fair market value (FMV) to be $1.61 to $2.11 per share
at the time of issuance. Shares vest over a three year vesting period.

e 400,184 shares were issued to non-employee pursuant to services rendered. Shares were valued at $1,984,104. The Company determined the FMV to
be the share price on the date of issuance, which ranged from $1.61 to $5.00.
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NOTE 11 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 50,000 shares of fully vested common stock to a consultant as partial consideration for
professional services to be rendered. The shares were fair valued at $0.41 per share, which was the traded stock price of the Company’s common stock at the time
of grant. The Company recognized legal and professional fees of $20,500 related to this grant. The Company also issued 42,000 shares of common stock in
connection with a warrant being exercised (see Note 12).

In connection with the acquisition of Xing, the Company issued a total of 5,600,672 shares of common stock as either purchase consideration or payment of
transactional services that were provided (see Note 3).

In connection with the acquisitions of Maverick, PMC and Marley, the Company issued a total of 6,400,000 shares of common stock as purchase consideration
(see Note 4).

Long-term Incentive Plan:

On August 3, 2016, the Company’s approved and implemented the New Age Beverages Corporation 2016--2017 Long- Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) pursuant
to which the maximum number of shares that can be granted is 1,000,000 shares. Grants under the Plan include options awards. The purpose of the Plan is to
provide such individuals with additional incentive and reward opportunities designed to enhance the profitable growth of the Company and its affiliates. The shares
of common stock to be issued in connection with the Plan will not be registered under the Securities Act. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, a total of 438,848
options were granted under the Plan.

Employee stock option activities under the Incentive Plan for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, and changes during the years then ended are presented
below:

Weighted-
Average Grant
Employee Stock Option Compensation Shares Di}:llljsir
Award Activity
- % -
Non-vested options at January 1, 2016
438,848 § 1.11
Granted
- % -
Vested
Forfeited
_ 438,848  $ 1.11
Non-vested options at December 31, 2016 B )
438,848 § 1.11
Non-vested options at January 1, 2017
N -
Granted
(146,283 $ 1.11
Vested )
Forfeited
292,565 $ 1.11

Non-vested options at December 31, 2017

The options were fair valued using the BlackScholes Merton model and valued at $1.11 per share on the grant date.

The following table presents the assumptions for the Black-Scholes option-pricing model used in determining the fair value of options granted to employees on the
grant date:

$ 1.79
Exercise price
0.0
Dividend yield %
0.86

Risk-free interest rate %



Expected volatility
Expected term (years)

Estimated forfeiture % rate

%

%

100

3.0

0.0




NOTE 12 - COMMON STOCK WARRANTS

NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had a warrant to purchase 0 and 100,000 shares of common stock outstanding with an exercise of $0.40 per
share. The warrant expires in March 2019. A summary of common stock warrants activity for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

Warrants outstanding December 31, 2015
Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Warrants outstanding December 31, 2016

Warrants exercisable as of December 31, 2016

Warrants outstanding December 31, 2016
Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Warrants outstanding December 31, 2017

Warrants exercisable as of December 31, 2017

Weighted
Average

Number Exercise Price
1,127,000 $ 0.94
372,974 $ 0.40
(42,000 $ 0.50
(1,085,000 § 0.96
372,974 § 0.40
372,974 § 0.40
375,000 $ 0.40
N .
(372,974 $ 0.40
- _ 0.40
- 0.40

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued a three year warrant to purchase 100,000 shares at an exercise price of $0.40 per share in
connection with a $200,000 Convertible Promissory Note (see Note 8) which was exercised during the year. An additional 275,000 shares were issued during the
year ended December 31, 2016 at an exercise price of $0.40 per share.

During 2017 and 2016, warrants totaling 372,974 and 42,000 shares of common stock were exercised at $0.40 and $0.50 per share.

NOTE 13 —-RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS

Restricted stock award activity under the Incentive Plan for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, and changes during the years then ended are presented

below:

Restricted Stock-Based Compensation

Non-vested restricted stock awards at January 1, 2016

Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Award Activity

Non-vested restricted stock awards at December 31, 2016

Service Shares

Weighted-
Average Grant
Date Fair
Shares Value
- $ -
771,783  $ 0.33
- $ -
- $ -
771,783 $ 0.33



Non-vested restricted stock awards January 1, 2017
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Non-vested restricted stock awards at December 31, 2017

The shares were fair valued using our closing stock price of $0.33 and $2.11 per share on the grant dates.
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771,783
250,000

(257,261

764,522

0.33

2.11

0.33

0.71




NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 14 - INCOME TAXES

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. Federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions.

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The Company must assess the likelihood that its deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable
income and, to the extent that it is more likely than not that such deferred tax assets will not be realized, the Company must establish a valuation allowance.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company has a valuation allowance against 100% of the deferred tax assets, which is primarily composed of net operating
loss (or NOL ) carryforwards. Even though the Company has reserved all of these net deferred tax assets for book purposes, the Company would still be able to
utilize them to reduce future income taxes payable should the Company have future taxable earnings. To the extent the deferred tax assets relate to NOL
carryforwards, the ability to use such NOLs against future earnings will be subject to applicable carryforward periods. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company had NOL carryforwards for both Federal and state tax purposes of approximately $ 10.9 million, which are available to offset taxable income through
2037 . Our NOL carryforwards begin to expire in 2028.

In December 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “2017 Tax Act”) was enacted. The 2017 Tax Act includes a number of changes to existing U.S. tax laws that
impact the Company, most notably a reduction of the U.S. corporate income tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent for tax years beginning after December 31,
2017. The 2017 Tax Act also provides for a one-time transition tax on certain foreign earnings and the acceleration of depreciation for certain assets placed into
service after September 27, 2017 as well as prospective changes beginning in 2018, including changing rules related to uses and limitations of net operating loss
carryforwards created in tax years beginning after December 31, 2017. Specifically, the 2017 Tax Act limits the amount the Company is able to deduct for net
operating loss carryforwards generated in taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017 to 80% of taxable income however these net operating loss
carryforwards can be carried forward indefinitely, repeal of the domestic manufacturing deduction, acceleration of tax revenue recognition, capitalization of
research and development expenditures, additional limitations on executive compensation and limitations on the deductibility of interest.

The changes to existing U.S. tax laws as a result of the 2017 Tax Act, which the Company believes has the most significant impact on the Company’s federal
income taxes are as follows:

Reduction of the U.S. Corporate Income Tax Rate

The Company measures deferred tax assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates that will apply in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or paid. Accordingly, the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities were remeasured to reflect the reduction in the U.S. corporate income tax rate
from 35 percent to 21 percent, resulting in a $ 1.4 million decrease in net deferred tax assets and a corresponding $ 1.4 million decrease in the valuation allowance
as of December 31, 2017.

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, there was no income tax expense recognized. The tax effects of temporary differences that give
rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented below:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016

$ 2,689,000 $ 2,139,000
Net operating loss carry forwards

128,000 34,000
Intangible asset amortization
53,000 -
Other
(2,870,000 (2,173,000
Valuation allowance ) )
$ - 8 =
Total
A reconciliation of income tax benefit based on the federal statutory rate to actual income tax expense (benefit) is as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016

$ (1,202,000 § (1,235,000
Expected federal income tax benefit at 34% ) )

Expected state income tax benefit, net of

(108,000 (111,000
federal benefit ) )
1,000 1,000
Non-deductible expenses
2,055,000 (39,000

Change in prior year deferred taxes and other )



(1,443,000 (43,000
Change in federal and state statutory tax rates ) )
697,000 1,427,000

Change in valuation allowance

Total tax expense
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 15 - NET LOSS PER SHARE

The following table provides basic and diluted shares outstanding for the calculation of net loss per share. Series B preferred stock is included on an as-converted
basis and warrants are included using the treasury stock method. For the years whereby we are reporting a net loss from continuing operations, securities to acquire
common stock or securities that are convertible into shares of common stock are excluded from the computation of net loss per share as they would be anti-

dilutive.

Weighted average shares outstanding — Basic
Series B preferred stock

Warrant to acquire common stock

Weighted average shares outstanding — Diluted

NOTE 16 - STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Supplemental Disclosures

CASH PAID DURING THE PERIODS FOR:
Interest

Income taxes

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Common stock issued for acquisition of Maverick Brands, LLC, Marley Beverages, LLC and Premier Micronutrient
Corporation

Warrants issued with convertible debt

Common stock issued for acquisition of Xing Beverage, LLC

Promissory note issued for acquisition of Xing Beverage, LLC

Convertible debt and accrued interest converted into shares of Series B Preferred stock

Conversion of Series B Preferred stock in common stock

Supplemental cash flow information regarding the Company’s acquisitions in 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Fair value of assets acquired
Less liabilities assumed

Net assets acquired

Year ended

December 31,

Year ended

December 31,

2017 2016
30,616,506 18,889,608
_ 30,616,506 18,889,608
Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ 228,039 § 189,470
$ - 8 -
$ 33,182,000
$ -3 18,153
$ - $ 6,995,000
$ - $ 4,500,000
$ -3 225,872
$ - 3 -
2017 2016
$ 39688219 $ 27,521,874
(4,506,219 (7,526,874
35,182,000 19,995,000
(33,182,000 (6,995,000



Less shares issued ) )
) (4,500,000
Less note payable )
$ 2,000,000 $ 8,500,000
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company follows segment reporting in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting .

Management views its operations based on two distinct reporting segments: (1) the Direct Store Distributions (DSD) and (2) the Brands segment. Operations and
net assets that are not associated with any of these operating segments are reported as “Corporate” when disclosing and discussing segment information.

The DSD segment distributes beverages throughout Colorado and surrounding states, delivering to approximately 6,000 retail customers.

The Brands segment sells beverages to wholesale distributors, broadliners, key account owned warehouses and international accounts using several distribution
channels.

Total revenues by reporting segment for the years presented are as follows:

Years Ended
December 31,

2017 2016
(In thousands)
$ 37,545 $ 18,211
DSD
14,643 7,091
Brands
52,188  § 25,302

e

Total revenues
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Total assets for each reporting segment as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

December 31,
(in thousands)

2017 2016
(In thousands)
$ 16,450 $ 17,274
DSD
50,486 9,452
Brands
$ 66,936 $ 26,726
Total Assets B B
DSD
A summary of the DSD segment’s revenues and cost of sales is as follows:
Years Ended
December 31,
(in thousands)
2017 2016
(In thousands)
$ 37,545 $ 18,211
Revenues
(28,096 (14,926
Cost of sales ) )
$ 9449 § 3,285
Gross profit B B
Brands
A summary of the Brands segment’s revenues and cost of sales is as follows:
Years Ended
December 31,
(in thousands)
2017 2016
(In thousands)
$ 14,643 § 7,091
Revenues
(11,692 (4,580
Cost of sales ) )
$ 2,951 § 2,511
Gross profit B B
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NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 18 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
During February 2018 the Company converted its Series B Preferred Stock at a ratio of 8:1 into 1,353,872 shares of common stock.

On March 12, 2018 the Company granted and issued a total of 122,640 shares to members of the board of directors for services rendered.

On April 10, 2018, the Company, entered into an underwriting agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) with Euro Pacific Capital, Inc., doing business as
A.G.P./Alliance Global Partners acting as representative of the several underwriters (the “Underwriters”), which provided for the issuance and sale by the
Company in an underwritten public offering (the “Offering”) and the purchase by the Underwriters of 2,285,715 shares of the Company’s common stock, $0.001
par value per share. Subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Underwriting Agreement, the shares were sold to the Underwriters at a public offering
price of $1.75 per share, less certain underwriting discounts and commissions. The Company also granted the Underwriters a 45- day option to purchase, severally
and not jointly, up to 342,857 additional shares of the Company’s common stock on the same terms and conditions for the purpose of covering any over-allotments
in connection with the Offering. The net offering proceeds to the Company from the Offering are estimated to be approximately $3.5 million, after deducting
estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and other estimated offering expenses. The Company intends to use the net proceeds from the Offering for
purchasing inventory for newly gained distribution and other general working capital purposes.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On August 19, 2016, Accell Audit & Compliance, PA (“Accell”) was appointed as the Company’s new independent registered public accounting firm. The
appointment of Accell was approved by the Board of Directors of New Age Beverages Corporation. Accell did not prepare or provide any financial reports for any
periods prior to the date of engagement, nor did it prepare or provide any financial reports for, or prior to the year ended December 31, 2015. Neither the
Company, nor any person on behalf of the Company, consulted with Accell during the Company’s two most recent fiscal years or the subsequent interim period
prior to the engagement of Accell regarding (i) the application of accounting principles to a specified transaction either completed or proposed or the type of audit
opinion that might be rendered on the Company’s financial statements, and neither a written report not oral advice was provided that Accell concluded was an
important factor considered by the Company in reaching a decision as to the accounting, auditing or financial reporting issue, or (ii) any matter that was either the
subject of a disagreement between the Company and its predecessor auditor as described in Item 304(a)(1)(iv) of Regulation S-K or a reportable event as described
in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K, prior to the dismissal of MaloneBailey, LLP (“MaloneBailey”).

On August 19, 2016, the Company notified MaloneBailey of its dismissal, as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm. MaloneBailey served
as the auditors of the Company’s financial statements for the period from April 27, 2015 through the date of dismissal. The reports of MaloneBailey on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the Company’s fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 did not contain any adverse opinion or a
disclaimer of opinion and were not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principle. The decision to change accountants was approved
by the Company’s Board of Directors. During the Company’s fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and during the subsequent interim period through
August 19, 2016, there were (i) no disagreements with MaloneBailey on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing
scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of MaloneBailey, would have caused MaloneBailey to make reference to the subject
matter of the disagreements as defined in Item 304 of Regulation S-K in connection with any of its reports, and (ii) there were no “reportable events” as such term
is described in Item 304 of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the
Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer (and our chief financial officer, as appropriate to allow for timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is
required to apply its judgment in evaluating the costbenefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Our management, with the participation of our
principal executive officer and chief financial officer (our principal financial officer), has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13115(e) and 15d15(e)) as of December 31, 2017. Based on that evaluation, our management concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2017.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over the Company’s financial reporting. In order to evaluate the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, our management, with the participation of
our principal executive officer and principal financial officer has conducted an assessment, including testing, using the criteria in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“ COSO ”) (2013). Our system of internal control over financial
reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent
or detect misstatements. This assessment included review of the documentation of controls, evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls, testing of the
operating effectiveness of controls and a conclusion on this evaluation.

Based on this evaluation, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

We are currently reviewing our disclosure controls and procedures related to all risk areas and expect to continually improve in the next calendar year, including
identifying specific areas within our governance, accounting and financial reporting processes to add adequate resources to mitigate any potential weaknesses.

Our management will continue to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of our internal controls and procedures and our internal controls over financial reporting
on an ongoing basis and is committed to taking further action and implementing additional enhancements or improvements, as necessary and as funds allow.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be
effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting. We believe that a control system, no matter how well designed and operated,

cannot provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the control system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control
issues and instances of fraud, if any, within any company have been detected.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The following table presents information with respect to our officers, directors and significant employees as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Name Age Position(s)

Neil Fallon 51 Executive Chairman

Brent David Willis 58 Chief Executive Officer, Director
Chuck Ence 58 Chief Financial Officer

Reggie Kapteyn(1)(2) 47 Director

David Vautrin(1)(2) 47 Director

Ed Brennan(2) 61 Director

Tim Haas(3) 71 Director

Greg Fea(1)(3) 58 Director

(1) Member of Audit Committee
(2) Member of Compensation Committee
(3) Member of Nominating and Governance Committee

Background of officers and directors
Neil Fallon — Executive Chairman

Neil Fallon has been a Director of the Company since inception on April 26, 2010, and served as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer from
inception until March 24, 2016. Mr. Fallon previously owned his own residential real estate development company, Neil Fallon Development, Inc. where he
developed and built over 100 home sites through California and Washington states from May 2002 to July 2015. He specialized in the development of infill
properties averaging in the range of 3050 home sites. Mr. Fallon has a BA in Business Administration with concentrations in Finance and Marketing from Western
Washington University.

Mr. Fallon was chosen to serve as a director of the company due to the fact that he is the founder of the company and possesses valuable business experience
related to acting in a management role.

Brent Willis - Chief Executive Officer, Director

Brent Willis was appointed as Chief Executive Officer, and as a member of the board of directors, on March 24, 2016. During the previous five years, Mr. Willis
has been a director or officer, serving as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of a number of majority or minority-owned private-equity backed companies from
November 2009 until present. Prior to these companies from 1987 through 2008, Mr. Willis was a C-Level and Senior Executive for Cott Corporation, AB InBev,
The Coca-Cola Company, and Kraft Heinz. Mr. Willis obtained a Bachelor’s of Science in Engineering from the United States Military Academy at West Point in
1982 and obtained a Master’s in Business Administration from the University of Chicago in 1991.

Mr. Willis was chosen to serve as a director of the Company due to his extensive executive experience running smaller companies, multinational companies and
his experience in the beverage industry.

Chuck Ence — Chief Financial Officer
Chuck Ence was appointed as Chief Financial Officer on September 15, 2016. From 2001 through present, Chuck Ence has been the Chief Financial Officer and a

minority owner of Xing Beverages, LLC. Mr. Ence obtained a Bachelors of Arts in Business Administration and Accounting from Southern Utah University in
1984, and obtained a Master’s in Business Administration in Finance from Arizona State University School of Business in 1985.
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Reggie Kapteyn — Director

Reggie Kapteyn has been a Director of the Company since 2017. Dr. Kapteyn is a published physician at the NIH (National Institutes of Health) and is currently a
Board Certified Practicing Physician, a Director of Vivitris Life Sciences, Inc., and a Director of Product Development at HydroCision, Inc. From 2015 through
present he has been a Director of Vivitris Life Sciences, Inc. From 2014 through present he has been a Director of Product Development at HydroCision, Inc. From
2013 through present he has been a Practicing Physician and Director of Pain Management at OAM in Michigan. From 2009 to 2012 he was a Medical Director at
Drake Hospital, a University of Cincinnati Hospital. He is a graduate of Hope College, West Virginia School of Osteopathic Medicine, with residency at
Georgetown University and fellowship at the NIH and the University of Wisconsin.

Dr. Kapteyn was chosen to be a director because of extensive experience in the Health Care field, and the importance of the Company to develop products for the
Medical channel.

David Vautrin — Director
David Vautrin has been a Director of the Company since 2017. Mr. Vautrin is currently the Chief Executive Officer of XFit Brands, Inc., a public company, and
the former CMO of Cott Corporation. From 2013 to present he has been the Chief Executive Officer of XFIT Brands, Inc. From 2009 to 2012 he was the Chief

Executive Officer of Throwdown Industries, Inc. He is a graduate of The State University of New York.

Mr. Vautrin was chosen to be a director because of extensive experience in running smaller companies, extensive experience in the beverage industry, and
extensive experience in financial matters relevant for a Board Audit committee.

Ed Brennan — Director

Ed Brennan has been a Director of the Company since 2017. Mr. Brennen is the current Owner and Chief Executive Officer of Beak and Skiff Orchards, a private
company, and is also the current Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Duty Free Stores, and the former CMO at Macy’s. From 2013 through present he has
been the Owner and Chief Executive Officer for Beak and Skiff Orchards. From 1999 through 2012 he was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer for Duty
Free Stores (DFS Hong Kong Ltd.). He is a graduate of Niagara University.

Mr. Brennan was chosen to be a director because of extensive experience in running major multinational companies, and extensive experience in the retail industry.
Tim Haas — Director

Tim Haas has been a Director of the Company since 2017. Mr. Hass is the former Chief Executive Officer of Coca-Cola Foods and The Minute Maid Company,
and former Group President Latin America of The Coca-Cola Company. Over the past five years he has not held any formal Board of Directors or other

employment positions. He is a graduate of The University of North Dakota.

Mr. Haas was chosen to be a director because of his extensive experience in running major multinational companies, and extensive experience in the beverage
industry with major strategic beverage leaders.

Greg Fea — Director

Greg Fea has been a Director of the Company since 2017. Mr. Fea is the former President, Chief Executive Officer and Vice-Chairman of Illy Coffee, and has over
twenty plus years of beverage experience in senior leadership roles for E&J Gallo, Cadbury Schweppes, and Danone. From 2015 through present he has been the
managing partner of Global Solutions Consulting. From 1998 through 2014 he worked for Illy Coffee, SPA and was President, Chief Executive Officer and Vice
Chairman of the firm based in Trieste Italy from 2013 to 2014. He is a graduate of San Diego State University.

Mr. Fea was chosen to be a director because of his extensive experience in running major multinational and mid-sized global companies, and extensive experience
in the beverage industry, and experience in the coffee, tea, and other healthy segments.

Corporate Governance

Our board of directors maintains an audit committee, compensation committee and nominating and corporate governance committee. Each committee operates
under a charter approved by our board of directors in connection. Copies of each charter are posted in the Investors section of our website ,www.newagebev.com.

Audit Committee
The functions of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the qualifications of the independent auditors, our annual and interim financial statements, the independent
auditor’s report, significant reporting or operating issues and corporate policies and procedures as they relate to accounting and financial controls; and (ii) to

consider and review other matters relating to our financial and accounting affairs. Mr. Vautrin, Dr. Kapteyn and Mr. Fea serve as members of the Company’s audit
committee, with Mr. Vautrin acting as the audit committee chairman and financial expert.
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Compensation Committee

The function of the Compensation Committee is to discharge the Board’s responsibilities relating to compensation of the Company’s directors and executive
officers, to produce an annual report on executive compensation for inclusion in the Company’s annual proxy statement, as necessary, and to oversee and advise
the Board on the adoption of policies that govern the Company’s compensation programs including stock incentive and benefit plans. Mr. Vautrin, Mr. Brennan,
and Dr. Kapteyn serve as members of the Company’s compensation committee, with Mr. Fea serving as the compensation committee chairman.

Nominating and Governance Committee

The function of the Nominating and Governance Committee is to (i) make recommendations to the Board regarding the size of the Board, (ii) make
recommendations to the Board regarding criteria for the selection of director nominees, (iii) identify and recommend to the Board for selection as director
nominees individuals qualified to become members of the Board, (iv) recommend committee assignments to the Board, (v) recommend to the Board corporate
governance principles and practices appropriate to the Company, and (vi) lead the Board in an annual review of its performance. Mr. Fea and Mr. Haas serve as
members of the Company’s governance committee, with Mr. Haas serving as the governance committee chairman.

Director Independence

The Company is quoted on The NASDAQ Capital Market which requires that a majority of the board of directors must be comprised of “independent” directors as
such term is defined in Rule 5605(a)(2). For purposes of determining director independence, we have applied the definitions set forth in The NASDAQ Capital
Market guidelines which state, generally, that a director is not considered to be independent if he or she is, or at any time during the past three years was an
employee of the Company or if he or she (or his or her family member) accepted compensation from the Company in excess of $120,000 during any twelve month
period within the three years preceding the determination of independence, among others. Our Board has affirmatively determined that Mr. Vautrin, Dr. Kapteyn,
Mr. Brennan, Mr. Haas and Mr. Fea are “independent” directors as such term is defined under The NASDAQ Capital Market rules and the related rules of the SEC.

Board Meetings; Committee Meetings; and Annual Meeting Attendance

During the year ended 2017, the Board of Directors held four meetings. The Audit Committee met four times. The Compensation Committee met four times. The
Nominating and Governance Committee met four times. We do not have a formal policy in place with respect to director attendance at the Company’s annual
meeting of shareholders.

Board Leadership Structure

The Board has no set policy with respect to the separation of the offices of Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Currently, Neil Fallon serves as
Executive Chairman and Brent Willis serves as Chief Executive Officer. Our board of directors does not have a lead independent director. Our board of directors
has determined that its leadership structure is appropriate and effective for us at this time, given our stage of development.

Board of Director’s Role in Risk Oversight

The Board is responsible for overseeing our management and operations, including overseeing our risk assessment and risk management functions. We believe that
our directors provide effective oversight of risk management functions. On a regular basis we perform a risk review wherein the management team evaluates the
risks we expect to face in the upcoming year and over a longer term horizon. From this risk assessment plans are developed to deal with the risks identified. The
results of this risk assessment are provided to the Board for their consideration and review. In addition, members of our management periodically present to the
Board the strategies, issues and plans for the areas of our business for which they are responsible. While the Board oversees risk management, our management is
responsible for day-to-day risk management processes. Additionally, the Board requires that management raise exceptional issues to the Board. We believe this
division of responsibilities is the most effective approach for addressing the risks we face and that the Board leadership structure supports this approach.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our principal executive, financial and accounting officers (or persons performing similar
functions), a copy of which is filed as Exhibit 14.1 to this Annual Report.

Family Relationships

There are no family relationships among the officers and directors, nor are there any arrangements or understanding between any of the Directors or Officers of our
Company or any other person pursuant to which any Officer or Director was or is to be selected as an officer or director.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Based on a review of reports filed by our directors, executive officers, and beneficial owners of more than 10% of our shares of common stock pursuant to Section
16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and other information available to us, we believe that all such ownership reports required to be filed by
those reporting persons during and with respect to Fiscal 2017 were timely made.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

During the last ten years, none of our officers, directors, promoters or control persons have been involved in any legal proceedings as described in Item 401(f) of
Regulation S-K.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation of our named executive officers during 2017 and 2016.

Name and Salary ($) Totals ($)
Principal Position Year
$ 200,000 $ 200,000
Brent Willis, Chief Executive Officer 2017
$ 67,500 $ 67,500
2016
$ 100,000 $ 100,000
Neil Fallon, former Chief Executive Officer 2017
$ 100,000 $ 100,000
2016

Employment Agreements

Our board of directors signed a board resolution on March 24, 2016, which provides that Brent Willis, the interim Chief Executive Officer as of the date of the
resolution, would receive a base salary of $7,500 per month, benefits and expense reimbursement, and a sign-on incentive bonus of 5% of the outstanding shares of
the Company as of the date of the resolution. The 5% of the outstanding shares sign-on bonus was equal to 771,783 shares of common stock valued at $200,663.46,
or $0.26 per share based on the market price of the shares on the date of issuance.

We executed an employment agreement on June 1, 2016, which provides that Mr. Willis receive a bonus of 5% of the outstanding shares of the Company upon
completion of a first acquisition involving more than 25% of our then current market capitalization. The transaction with Xing met that criteria, and the Company
paid the share bonus at the time of closing of the Xing transaction which equaled 1,078,763 shares of common stock valued at $1,736,808.43, or $1.61 per share
based on the market price of the shares on the date of issuance.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

Chuck Ence, CFO was granted 183,348 stock options in connection with the Equity Compensation Plan. There are no outstanding equity awards for our officers
and directors.

Compensation of Directors
The board of directors has the authority to fix the compensation of directors. No amounts have been paid to, or accrued to, our directors in such capacity as of the
date of this report. On January 27, 2017, we executed offer letters with Mr. Vautrin, Dr. Kapteyn, Mr. Brennan, Mr. Haas and Mr. Fea, whichprovide that Mr.

Vautrin, Dr. Kapteyn, Mr. Brennan, Mr. Haas and Mr. Fea will each receive annual compensation of $10,000 in cash and $65,000 worth of restricted common
stock for their services as members of the board of directors.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth information with respect to the beneficial ownership of the Company’s voting securities as of April 12, 2018, by each person or
group of affiliated persons known to the Company to beneficially own 5% or more of such class of voting securities, each director, each named executive officer,
and all of its directors and named executive officers as a group. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner listed below is c/o New Age
Beverages Corporation, 1700 E. 68th Avenue, Denver, CO 80229.

The following table gives effect to the shares of common stock issuable within 60 days of April 12, 2018, upon the exercise of all options and other rights
beneficially owned by the indicated stockholders on that date. Unless otherwise indicated, the persons named in the table have sole voting and sole investment

control with respect to all shares beneficially owned.

Percentage of

Combined Voting
Number of Shares Percentage Power of Percentage of
of Percentage of Number of Shares Of Shares of Common and Voting Power of
Common Stock Shares of Common of Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Common Stock
Beneficially Stock Beneficially Beneficially Beneficially Before After
Beneficial Owner Owned Owned Owned Owned Offering(2)(3) Offering
Five Percent Stockholders:
B&R Liquid Adventure Trust(1) 1,434,912 6.5% — — —
Nuwa Group, LLC(2) 2,852,311 13% 169,234 81.1%(2) —
Scott Lebon(3) 1,579,761 7.2% — — —
Tom Lebon(4) 1,579,761 7.2% — — —
Julie Anderson(5) 1,731,236 7.9% — 10%(5) 10.%(5)
Executive Officers and Directors:
Neil Fallon(6) 5,689,639 26.0% — 90%(6) 90%(6)
Brent Willis(7) 1,850,546 8.4% — — —
Chuck Ence 422,702 1.9% — — —
Reggie Kapteyn 30,232 — — — —
David Vautrin 30,232 — — — —
Ed Brennan 30,232 — — — —
Tim Haas 30,232 — — — —
Greg Fea 30,232 — — — —
All Officers and
Directors as a Group (8 persons) 8,114,047 36.3% 169,234 2)(5)(6) 90%

(1) The address for B&R Liquid Adventure Trust is 514 John Street, Manhattan Beach, CA 90266. The trustees of the trust are Robert Tiedemann and Richard
Corgel.

(2) Includes 1,198,439 common shares and 206,734 shares of Series B preferred stock, consisting of 81.1% of the outstanding shares of Series B preferred stock,
which are convertible into eight common shares for each Series B preferred share held, with the limitation that the Series B preferred shares may not be converted
in an amount that would result in the beneficial ownership of greater than 9.99% of the outstanding shares of the Company. The members of Nuwa Group, LLC are
Kevin Fickle and Devin Bosch. The address for Nuwa Group, LLC is 1415 Oakland Blvd, Suite 219, Walnut Creek, 94596.
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(3) The address for Scott Lebon is 4891 Wren Court, Frederick, CO 80504.
(4) The address for Tom Lebon is 6865 West Coco Pl, Littleton, CO 80128.

(5) Includes 1,731,236 common shares and possesses the combined voting power of 14,206,236 shares of common stock, which is equal to 10.6% of the combined
voting power of the common. The address for Ms. Anderson is 6726 37 th St. Ct. West, University Place, WA 98466.

(6) Includes 5,689,639 common shares possesses the combined voting power of 117,964,639 shares of common stock, which is equal to 88% of the combined
voting power of the common.

(7) Includes 771,783 shares of common stock issued pursuant to an Employment Agreement as a sign on bonus, as well 1,078,763 shares issued as a bonus at the
time of closing of the Xing transaction.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

In addition to the executive officer and director compensation arrangements discussed above the following is a description of each transaction since January 1,
2014 and any currently proposed transaction in which (i) we have been or are to be a participant, (ii) the amount involved exceeded or will exceed the lesser of
$120,000 or one percent of the average of our total assets at year-end for the last two completed fiscal years, and (iii) any of our directors, executive officers,
holders of more than five percent of our capital stock, or any immediate family member of, or person sharing the household with, any of these individuals, had or
will have a direct or indirect material interest.

On May 27, 2016, the Company issued to Nuwa Group, LLC 30,000 shares of Series B preferred stock pursuant to a debt conversion agreement whereby $225,872
owed by us to Nuwa Group, LLC was converted into shares of our Series B preferred stock. Nuwa Group, LLC is a beneficial holder of greater than 5% of our
outstanding common stock.

On June 30, 2016, the Company issued 1,579,761 shares of common stock to each of Scott Lebon and Tom Lebon pursuant to our acquisition of Xing. The shares
were received as part of a tax free transaction, but were valued for purposes of the transaction at $1.6066 per share, or $2,538,044 for each of Scott and Tom

Lebon. The transactions resulted in Scott and Tom Lebon becoming holders of greater than 5% of our common stock.

On June 30, 2016, the Company issued 422,702 shares of common stock to Chuck Ence, our Chief Financial Officer, in connection with our acquisition of Xing.
The shares were received as part of a tax free transaction, but were valued for purposes of the transaction at $1.6066 per share, or $679,133.

Director Independence

Mr. Vautrin, Dr. Kapteyn, Mr. Brennan, Mr. Haas and Mr. Fea are each “independent” within the meaning of NASDAQ Rule 5605(b)(1).
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

During the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 we engaged Accell as our independent auditors.

For the years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016, we incurred fees as discussed below:

2017
ACCELL
$ 136,720
Audit fees
90,800
Audit related fees
_ 227,520
Total fees i
2016
ACCELL
$ 37,349
Audit fees
122,595
Audit related fees
MALONE BAILEY
5,100
All other fees
§ 165,044
Total fees h

Audit fees consist of fees related to professional services rendered in connection with the audit of our annual financial statements and review of our quarterly
financial statements.

Audit Related Fees

Audit relates fees consist of fees related for offerings and acquisitions.

Tax Fees

None.

Our policy is to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services performed by the independent accountants. These services may include audit services,
audit-related services, tax services and other services. Under our Audit Committee’s policy, pre-approval is generally provided for particular services or categories
of services, including planned services, project based services and routine consultations. In addition, the Audit Committee may also pre-approve particular services
on a case-by-case basis. Our Audit Committee approved all services that our independent accountants provided to us in the past two fiscal years.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS

The following exhibits required by Item 601 to be filed herewith are incorporated by reference to previously filed documents:

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Amended Articles of Incorporation 2016 New Age Beverages Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.01 of our Form 8-K (File
No. 000-55179) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 5, 2016)
3.2 Amended Bylaws 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2.2 of our Form S-1 (File No. 333-193725) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 3, 2014)
3.3 Certificate of Designation of Series A preferred stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our Form S-1 (File No. 333-193725) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 3, 2014)
34 Amended Certificate of Designation of Series B preferred stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of our Form S-1 (File No. 000-
55179) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 5, 2016)
10.1 New Age Beverages Corporation 2016-2017 Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 8-K (File
No. 000-55179) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 5, 2016)
10.2 Employment Agreement with Brent Willis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Form S-1 (File No. 000-55179) filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on October 5, 2016)


https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001079974-16-001472.html?hash=10baa13f6ec740dda079a7958acbe521d27715c3a5b52fd3b2fec4caa6cffee3&dest=EX3_01_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001079974-14-000081.html?hash=7928e1720cd96da334ce1cfb8d0dc6c975659c38c2b6b87954ccd3786e8aba19&dest=EX3_22_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001079974-14-000081.html?hash=7928e1720cd96da334ce1cfb8d0dc6c975659c38c2b6b87954ccd3786e8aba19&dest=EX4_1_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001079974-16-001472.html?hash=10baa13f6ec740dda079a7958acbe521d27715c3a5b52fd3b2fec4caa6cffee3&dest=EX10_01_HTM

—
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Funding Agreement with Nuwa Group, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.1 of our Amendment No. 1 to Form S-1 (File No.
333-193725) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2014)

10.3 Amendment to Funding Agreement with Nuwa Group, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.2 of our Amendment No. 1 to Form
S-1 (File No. 333-193725) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2014)
104 Asset Purchase Agreement with B&R Liquid Adventure, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 8-K (File No. 000-
55179) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 2, 2015)
10.5 Asset Purchase Agreement for Xing Acquisition (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 8-K (File No. 000-55179) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 23, 2016)
10.6 Asset Purchase Agreement with AMBREW, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 8-K (File No. 000-55179) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 5, 2015)
10.7 Promissory Note (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of our Amendment No. 1 to Form 8-K (File No. 000-55179) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 30, 2016)
10.8 Credit Agreement dated June 30, 2016 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of our Form S-1 (File No. 000-55179) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 28, 2016)
10.9 Promissory Note with Nuwa Group, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of our Form S-1 (File No. 000-55179) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 28, 2016)
10.10 Credit Agreement NABC Properties June 30, 2016 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of our Form S-1 (File No. 333-215267) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 22, 2016)
10.11 Purchase and Sale Agreement between NABC Properties, LLC and Vision 23 ™, LLC dated January 10, 2017(incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 30, 2017)
10.12 Asset Purchase Agreement between New Age Beverages Corporation and Marley Beverage Company, LLC dated as of March 23, 2017 (
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 29, 2017)
10.13 Asset Purchase Agreement between New Age Beverages Corporation and Maverick Brands, LLC Company, LLC dated as of March 31,
2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 2017)
10.14 Security Agreement between New Age Beverages Corporation and in favor of Sunkist Growers, Inc., as Collateral Agent dated as of March
31,2017 ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31,
2017)
10.15 Asset Purchase Agreement between New Age Beverages Corporation and Premier Micronutrient Corporation dated as of May 18, 2017 (
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 24, 2017)
10.16 Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement between New Age Beverages Corporation and Marley Beverage Company, LLC dated as of June
9, 2017 ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 13, 2017)
10.17 At Market Issuance Sales Agreement between New Age Beverages Corporation and B.Riley FBR, Inc. dated as of March 23, 2018 (

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 23, 2018)
o Code of Ethics and Conduct
1.1%* List of Subsidiaries
W Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302
%

31. Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302
32.1% Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906
32.2% Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906
101** Interactive Data Files

* Filed herewith

**In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of
Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections.
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https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001079974-14-000147.html?hash=bc88f1ce1e7f83092a3be357ea66706b83507db0af9d8dfa73641a4a1d8779f4&dest=EX10_21_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001079974-14-000147.html?hash=bc88f1ce1e7f83092a3be357ea66706b83507db0af9d8dfa73641a4a1d8779f4&dest=EX10_22_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001079974-15-000241.html?hash=9e683e611eba4c3675d3e5cef7621b87aa3a09963b89cf15e0fc5f449694c4a6&dest=EX10_1_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001079974-16-001235.html?hash=e1f50c12cc5a01ea79f48673e3faac47732dbc5b590f6732997e2f47d6ece0b2&dest=EX10_1_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001079974-16-001395.html?hash=0c221da56dd37f2373891169ea55da79f6308405e2b6e764892d7df0eca87cf8&dest=EX10_4_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001493152-16-016153.html?hash=0ef5d39aaa3d3dfc4b04a98561813fe04da77b3a0d47e91a7092a27ca98db0a9&dest=EX10-9_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001493152-17-000900.html?hash=ad44fcec87f30d6a8de547a7ece7b053784752d4c1f7726d56ff38b204876af6&dest=EX10-1_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001493152-17-002986.html?hash=27c442e2f018acfb7f161440ec7fa9614bebd9bbc09aadb0ec4465fb9a4b6897&dest=EX10-1_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001493152-17-003256.html?hash=3b607409b862a7d18da14c41f1fb410c009eb53fd656a93b23a83f7804b92438&dest=EX10-1_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001493152-17-003256.html?hash=3b607409b862a7d18da14c41f1fb410c009eb53fd656a93b23a83f7804b92438&dest=EX10-2_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001493152-17-005820.html?hash=8920feb1787c526adba7cafecc7ef6055cbd405e4cf8a58465306db0bb1fef31&dest=EX10-1_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001493152-17-006594.html?hash=6b473c6569d6ef0e011352f06711d6e8291e0cc4237b70dbb0add26f4b1abf54&dest=EX10-2_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001654954-18-003033.html?hash=11f36d69e655d707bee598d9d29ff81798c6e8b17b7cf30930ca60eb8bae26b2&dest=NABC_EX101_HTM

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION

Date: April 17,2018 By:/s/ Brent Willis
Brent Willis
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: April 17,2018 By:/s/ Chuck Ence
Chuck Ence
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in
the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date
/s/ Brent Willis Chief Executive Officer and Director April 17,2018
Brent Willis (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Chuck Ence Chief Financial Officer April 17,2018
Chuck Ence (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ Neil Fallon Executive Chairman April 17,2018
Neil Fallon
/s/ Reggie Kapteyn Director April 17,2018
Reggie Kapteyn
/s/ David Vautrin Director April 17,2018
David Vautrin
/s/ Ed Brennan Director April 17,2018
Ed Brennan
/s/ Tim Haas Director April 17,2018
Tim Haas
/s/ Greg Fea Director April 17,2018
Greg Fea

41




Exhibit 14.1

r "'—| NEW AGE BEVERAGES CORPORATION
X A ‘ 1700 EAST 68TH AVENUE
DENVER, COLORADO 80229

Az B J WWW.NEWAGEBEV.COM

New Age Beverages Code of Ethics and Conduct

New Age Beverages Corporation is committed to conducting our business in accordance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations
and the highest standards of business ethics. This Code of Business Ethics and Conduct reflects the business practices and principles
of behavior that support this commitment. We expect every officer, director, and associate of the Company, its subsidiaries and
affiliates to read and understand the Code of Ethics and abide by it in the performance of his/her business responsibilities. The Code
of Ethics is designed to represent key guiding principles for the Company’s officers, directors, and associates and should not be
understood to replace or eliminate any additional obligations set forth in applicable Company personnel policies or agreements.

This Code of Ethics does not cover every issue that may arise. If you have any questions about the proper course of conduct in any
situation, you should seek assistance from your manager, the Company’s legal counsel or other Company resources.

To the extent that a law conflicts with a policy in this Code of Ethics you must comply with the law; however, if a local custom or
policy conflicts with this Code of Ethics, you must comply with the Code of Ethics.

Each Company associate must abide by our Code of Ethics. Adherence to the Code of Ethics is a condition to employment and is not
optional or a sometimes when convenient thing . Violators of the Code of Ethics or people that don’t live our values are subject to
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. Violations of the Code of Ethics by agents of the Company
might also result in disciplinary action against those officers, directors or associates with responsibility and oversight of those agents.
Violations of this Code of Ethics may also mean that you or the Company’s agents are breaking the law, subjecting you (and
possibly the Company) to criminal or civil sanctions or penalties, including monetary fines and/or prison.

The Code

"Always choose the harder right versus the easier wrong.”

Every thing that we do as a firm and individual team members should be judged against this ideal. The NBEV Code of Conduct is
one of the ways we put “Choosing the Harder Right” into practice. It’s built around the knowledge that everything we do in
connection with our work at NBEV will be, and should be, measured against the highest possible standards of ethical business
conduct. We set the bar that high for possible, because we want the best people in the world, and onl y want people and leaders of
character. Our commitment to the highest standards helps us hire great people, build great products, and drive superior value for all
our business partners. Trust, candor and mutual respect among associates are the foundation of our success, and they are something
we need to earn and build on every day.
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Please follow Your Code both its spirit and letter, always bearing in mind that each of us has a personal responsibility to incorporate,
and to encourage all fellow NBEV owners to incorporate, the principles of the Code into our work. And if you have a question or

ever think that one of your fellow owners of the company as a whole may be falling short of our commitment, don’t be silent. We
want -- and need -- to hear from you.

Who is the code for?

We expect all of our fellow owners and Board members to know and follow the Code. Failure to do so will result in disciplinary
action, including termination of employment. In addition, although the Code is specifically written for our own associates and Board
members, we expect all our partners, consultants and others who work with or provide services to NBEV to follow the Code in
connection with their work with us. Failure of a supplier or business partner, consultant or other service provider to follow the Code
will end in termination of their relationship with New Age.

What if I have a Code-related question or concern?

If you have a question or concern, don’t just sit there. You can contact your manager, or anyone in HR, or the CEO directly to report
the concern. New Age prohibits retaliation against any worker at the Company who reports or participates in an investigation of a
possible violation of our Code. If you believe you are being retaliated against, please contact the CEO personally or HR directly.

I. Serve our business partners

“Build value-based relationships, by providing the best brands with the best return for all”

Our business partners value New Age because we work hard to provide the best products, best brands, best value, and best service
and return for them. They also value us because we hold ourselves to a higher standard in how we treat business partners and operate
overall. Keeping the following principles in mind will maintain that high standard:

e [ntegrity Our reputation as a company that can be trusted is our most valuable asset, and it is up to all of us to make sure that
we continually earn that trust. All of our communications and other interactions with our business partners should increase
their trust in us with every interaction.

® Responsiveness Part of being useful and honest is being responsive: We live by the sunset rule (email/other response by
sunset that day). We take pride in responding to communications from our business partners and consumers, whether
questions, problems or compliments. If something is broken, fix it.

e Take Action Any time you feel our business partners or consumers aren’t being put first—Ilet someone in the company know
about it. Continually improving our products and services takes all of us, and we’re proud that New Age puts consumers first.
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I1. Respect Each Other

“Respect and be loyal to your partners, and do your share to make things happen”

We love a candid, open and challenging workplace, where associates have the opportunity to reach their fullest potential. Each New
Ager is expected to do their best to create a respectful workplace culture that is free of harassment, intimidation, bias and unlawful
discrimination of any kind. Please read the Associate Handbook that covers in greater detail how we should conduct ourselves at
work.

® Positive Environment New Age prohibits unlawful harassment in any form — verbal, physical or visual. If you believe you’ve
been harassed by anyone at New Age, or by a New Age partner or vendor, you should immediately report the incident to
your supervisor, Human Resources or both. Similarly, supervisors and managers who learn of any such incident should
immediately report it to Human Resources. HR will promptly and thoroughly investigate any complaints and take appropriate
action.

e Drugs and Alcohol Our position on substance abuse is simple: It doesn't work with our values, or the health and safety of our
associates, we don’t permit it, and we don’t care if they have any special get out of jail free card to go with it. Consumption
of alcohol is not banned at our offices, but use good judgment and never drink in a way that leads to impaired performance or
inappropriate behavior, endangers the safety of others or violates the law. Illegal drugs in our offices or at sponsored events
are strictly prohibited. If a manager has reasonable suspicion to believe that an associate’s use of drugs and/or alcohol may
adversely affect the associate’s job performance or the safety of the associate or others in the workplace, the manager may
request an alcohol and/or drug screening. A reasonable suspicion may be based on observed symptoms such as the
associate’s appearance, behavior or speech.

e FEqual Opportunity Employment Employment here is based solely upon individual abilities and qualifications. We don't care
what color of skin they may have, the religion they subscribe to, their gender they identify with or anything. We love all
God’s children, and cherish diversity in all forms. We abhor and strictly prohibit unlawful discrimination or harassment of
any kind, including discrimination or harassment on the basis of race, color, religion, veteran status, national origin, ancestry,
pregnancy status, sex, gender identity or expression, age, marital status, mental or physical disability, medical condition,
sexual orientation or any other characteristics protected by law. We also make all reasonable accommodations to meet our
obligations under laws protecting the rights of the disabled.

e Safe Workplace We are commiitted to a violence-free work environment, and we will not tolerate any level of violence or the
threat of violence in the workplace. Under no circumstances should anyone bring a weapon of any type to work. If you
become aware of a violation of this policy, you should report it to Human Resources immediately. In case of potential
violence, contact New Age Security.
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e Dog Policy We are dog (and kid) friendly. New Age’s affection for our canine friends is a part of our “Live Family”

corporate culture. We sort of accept cats and other animals/pets, but feel if they visit our offices they might get harassed and
we don't accept harassment for any gender/mammal type, so we don't recommend it.

ITI. Avoid Conflicts of Interest
“Put the Company First...Think and Act like an Owner”

In working at New Age, we have an obligation to always do what’s best for the Company and our business partners. When you are
in a situation in which competing loyalties could create a personal benefit for you, your friends or your family, you may be faced
with a conflict of interest. All of us should avoid conflicts of interest and circumstances that reasonably present the appearance of a
conflict. When faced with a potential conflict of interest, ask yourself:

e Would this activity create an incentive for me, or be perceived by others to create an incentive for me, to benefit my friends,
my family or myself?

e Would this harm my reputation or potentially harm New Age?

o Would this activity embarrass New Age or me if it showed up on the net?

If the answer to any of these questions is “yes,” the relationship or situation is likely to create a conflict of interest, and you should
avoid it. Below, we provide guidance in seven areas where conflicts of interest often arise:

Inventions

Personal investments

Outside employment, advisory roles, board seats, and starting your own business
Business opportunities found through work

Friends and relatives; co-worker relationships

Accepting gifts, entertainment and other business courtesies

Use of New Age products and services

In each of these situations, the guidance is the same — if you are considering entering into a situation that creates a conflict of
interest, just say no — and go back to our overriding principle, “Choose the harder right versus the easier wrong.” Just say no. If
you are in a situation that may create a conflict of interest, or the appearance of a conflict of interest, review the situation with your
manager.
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Inventions All inventions developed while under New Age’s, subsidiary companies, or predecessor companies are the property of
New Age. In addition, developing or helping to develop outside inventions that a) relate to New Age’s existing or reasonably
anticipated products and services, b) relate to your position at New Age, or c) are developed using New Age corporate resources

may create conflicts of interest. If you have any questions about potential conflicts or intellectual property ownership involving an
outside invention or other intellectual property, please consult HR.

Personal Investments Avoid making personal investments in companies that are New Age competitors or business partners when the
investment might cause, or appear to cause, you to act in a way that could harm New Age. When determining whether a personal
investment creates a conflict of interest, consider the relationship between the business of the outside company, New Age’s business
and what you do at New Age, including whether the company has a business relationship with New Age that you can influence and
the extent to which the company competes with New Age. You should also consider 1) any overlap between your specific role at
New Age and the company’s business, 2) the significance of the investment, including the size of the investment in relation to your
net worth, 3) whether the investment is in a public or private company, 4) your ownership percentage of the company, and 5) the
extent to which the investment gives you the ability to manage and control the company.

Outside Employment, Advisory Roles, Board Seats and Starting Your Own Business Avoid accepting employment, advisory
positions or board seats with New Age competitors or business partners when your judgment could be, or could appear to be,
influenced in a way that could harm New Age. Additionally, because board seats come with fiduciary obligations that can make
them particularly tricky from a conflict of interest perspective, you should notify your manager before accepting a board seat with
any outside company. New Age board members and associates who are VP and above should also notify the Governance and
Compliance Committee of the Board. Finally, do not start your own business if it will compete with New Age.

Friends and Relatives;, Co-Worker Relationships Avoid participating in a potential or existing New Age business relationship
involving your spouse, relatives, significant other, or close friends. Notwithstanding, just because a relative, spouse/significant other
or close friend works at New Age or becomes a New Age competitor or business partner doesn’t mean there is a conflict of interest.
However, if you are also involved in that New Age business relationship, it can be very sensitive. The right thing to do in that
situation is to discuss the relationship with your manager and the Board Compliance and Governance Committee. Finally, romantic
relationships between co-workers are fine, but can, depending on the work roles and respective positions of the co-workers involved,
create an actual or apparent conflict of interest. If a romantic relationship does create an actual or apparent conflict, it may require
changes to work arrangements or even the termination of employment of either or both individuals involved. Consult New Age’s
Associate Handbook for additional guidance on this issue.
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® Accepting Gifts or Entertainment Accepting gifts or entertainment from a New Age competitor or business partner can easily
create the appearance of a conflict of interest, especially if the value of the item is significant (over $250.00). Generally,
acceptance of inexpensive “token” non-cash gifts is permissible (sporting or other consumer events on occasion ). In
addition, infrequent and moderate business meals and entertainment with clients and infrequent invitations to attend local
sporting events and celebratory meals with clients can be appropriate aspects of many New Age business relationships,

provided that they aren’t excessive and don’t create the appearance of impropriety. Before accepting any gift, please obtain
manager approval. Contact HR if you have any questions.

o Use of New Age Products or Stuff Avoiding potential conflicts of interest also means that you should not use New Age
products, buildings, services or information in a way that benefits you or creates the appearance that you have an unfair
advantage or benefit. For example, you should never approve New Age accounts, services or credits for yourself, your
friends, or family members. If you find yourself subject to a conflict of interest regarding a New Age product or service,
discuss the situation with your manager.

.....

® Reporting isteiEthics & Compliance will periodically report to the New Age Board Governance and Compliance Committee

all matters involving New Age officers — VPs and above —and will periodically report all matters involving New Age
executive officers and Board members approved under this section.

IV. Preserve Confidentiality
“Loose tweets, sink fleets”

If someone does not have a need to know information, don't share it. Our responsibilities extend beyond not revealing confidential
New Age material — we must also:

e Properly secure, label and dispose of confidential New Age material;
e Safeguard confidential information that New Age receives from under NDA’s; and
e Take steps to keep our trade secrets and other intellectual property trade secrets.

Confidential Information New Age’s “confidential information” includes financial, product or other information. Make sure that
confidential company material stays that way; don’t disclose it outside of New Age without authorization. At times, a particular
project or negotiation may require you to disclose confidential information to another party: Disclosure of this information should be
on a “need to know” basis and only under a non-disclosure agreement. If in doubt, put in place an NDA. There may be “gray areas”
in which you will need to apply your best judgment in making sure you don’t disclose any confidential information. If you’re in a
gray area, run. Don’t tell your significant other or family members anything confidential.

New Age Partners Just as you are careful not to disclose confidential New Age information, it’s equally important not to disclose
any confidential information from our partners. Don’t accept confidential information from other companies without first having all
parties sign an appropriate NDA in place. Even after the agreement is signed, try only to accept as much information as you need to
accomplish your business objectives.
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Competitors/Former Employers We respect our competitors and want to compete with them honorably, but crush them and their will
to continue to compete at the same time. But we don’t want their confidential information. The same goes for confidential
information belonging to any New Ager’s former employers. If an opportunity arises to take advantage of a competitor’s or former

employer’s confidential information, don’t do it. Should you happen to come into possession of a competitor’s confidential
information, contact Legal or HR immediately.

Outside Communications and Research You probably know that our policy is to be extremely careful about disclosing company
information, and never to disclose any confidential information without authorization. It’s also a bad idea to post your opinions or
information about New Age on the Internet, even if not confidential, unless you’re authorized to do so as part of your job. Your
comments may be attributed to New Age, even though you didn’t mean it that way. And never discuss the company with the press
and do not accept any public speaking engagement.

V. Protect New Age’s Assets
“It’s your business, treat it that way”

New Age is earning a well-deserved reputation for generosity with our associate stock benefits, performance bonus program and
openness with confidential information shared within the company. Our ability to continue these practices depends on how well we
conserve company resources and protect company assets and information.

Intellectual Property New Age’s intellectual property rights (our trademarks, logos, copyrights, trade secrets, “know-how” and
patents) are among our most valuable assets. Unauthorized use can lead to their loss or serious loss of value. Any use of New Age’s
trademarks and logos must be cleared in advance by the Marketing team. Report any suspected misuse of trademarks, logos or other
New Age intellectual property to Legal. Likewise, respect the intellectual property rights of others. Inappropriate use of others’
intellectual property may expose New Age and you to criminal and civil fines and penalties. Please seek advice from Legal before
you solicit, accept or use proprietary information from others or let others use or have access to New Age proprietary information.
You should also check with Legal if developing a product that uses content not belonging to New Age. Failing to do so may lead to
legal claims against New Age, as well as significant damage to the company’s reputation. Please seek guidance from Legal and/or
HR on any intellectual property question.

Company Equipment New Age gives us the tools and equipment we need to do our jobs effectively, but counts on us to be
responsible and not wasteful with the New Age stuff we are given. Company funds, beverages or equipment and other physical
assets are not to be requisitioned for purely personal use.
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e Networks/Passwords The New Age’s dropboxes and networks are critical aspects of our company’s property, both physical
and intellectual. Be sure to follow all security policies. If you have any reason to believe that our network security has been

violated — for example, you lose your laptop or smart phone or think that your network password may have been
compromised — please promptly report the incident to your manager.

e Associate Data We collect and store personal information from associates. Access this data only in line with local law and
New Age internal policies, and keep it secure according to those standards.

e Security If you’re not careful, unfortunately nefarious people may help themselves to your stuff. Guard it and be smart.
Always secure your laptop, important equipment and your personal belongings, even while on New Age’s premises.
Promptly report any suspicious activity to HR.

o Use of New Age’s Equipment and Facilities Anything you do using New Age’s stuff (i.e. our computers, mobile devices,
network, warehouse, etc.) might be disclosed to those outside the company. For example, New Age may be required by law
to monitor, access and disclose the contents of corporate email, voicemail, computer files and other materials on our
electronic facilities or on our premises. In addition, the company may monitor, access and disclose associate communications
and other information on our corporate electronic facilities or on our premises at the Company’s full discretion, and typically
for such purposes such as protecting associates and business partners, maintaining the security of resources and property, or
investigating suspected associate misconduct.

VI. Ensure Financial Integrity and Responsibility
“Treat every penny, as if it is your own, and your last”

Financial integrity and fiscal responsibility are core aspects of professionalism. This implies more than just accurate reporting of our
financials. The money we invest on behalf of New Age is not ours; it’s the company’s and, ultimately, our shareholders’. Each
person at New Age as a fellow owner — not just those in Finance — has a role in making sure that money is appropriately spent, our
financial records are complete and accurate and internal controls are being honored. This matters every time we hire a new vendor,
expense something to New Age, sign a new business contract or enter into any deals on New Age’s behalf.

To make sure that we get this right, New Age maintains a system of externally audited internal controls to reinforce our compliance
with legal, accounting, tax and other regulatory requirements in every location in which we operate. Stay in full compliance with our
system of internal controls, and don’t hesitate to contact HR or Finance if you have any questions. What follows are some core
concepts that lie at the foundation of financial integrity and fiscal responsibility here at New Age.
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Spending New Age’s Money As a rule, don’t spend ours, spend others. A core New Age value has always been to spend money
wisely, and to ensure there is a direct correlation to profitable revenue. 100% of costs drop to the bottom line versus 10% of sales, so
every penny invested better be done wisely. When you submit an expense for reimbursement or spend money on New Age’s behalf,
make sure that the cost is 100% in line with Corporate Expense Policy, reasonable, directly related to company business and
supported by appropriate documentation. Always record the business purpose and always record the full names and titles of the
people who attended as well as the reason for the dinner) and comply with other submission requirements. As mentioned, the best
expense is someone else’s. If you’re uncertain about whether you should spend money or submit an expense for reimbursement,

check with your manager. Managers (but frankly all of us as fellow owners) are responsible for all money spent and expenses
incurred by their direct reports, return on those investments and should carefully review such spend and expenses before approving.

Signing a Contract Each time you enter into a business transaction on New Age’s behalf, there should be documentation recording
that agreement, approved by the Legal Department. Signing a contract on behalf of New Age is a very big deal. Never sign any
contract on behalf of New Age unless all of the following are met:

® You are authorized to do so under our Signature Authority and Approval Policy. If you are unsure whether you are
authorized, ask your manager;

e The contract has been approved by Legal. If you are using an approved New Age form contract, you don’t need further Legal
approval unless you have made changes to the form contract or are using it for other than its intended purpose; and

® You have studied the contract, understood its terms and decided that entering into the contract is in New Age’s interest.

All contracts at New Age should be in writing and should contain all of the relevant terms to which the parties are agreeing — New
Age does not permit “side agreements,” oral or written.

Recording Transactions If your job involves the financial recording of our transactions, make sure that you’re fully familiar with all
of the New Age policies that apply. Immediately report any transactions that you think are not being recorded correctly.

Reporting Financial or Accounting Irregularities You should never, ever interfere in any way with the auditing of New Age’s
financial records. Similarly, you should never falsify any record or account, including time reports, expense accounts and any other
New Age records. If you suspect or observe any of the conduct mentioned above or, for that matter, any irregularities relating to
financial integrity or fiscal responsibility, no matter how small, immediately report them to the CEO or Board Governance
Comnmittee.
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Hiring Suppliers As New Age grows, we enter into more and more deals with suppliers of equipment and services. We should
always strive for the best possible deal for New Age, and gain at least 3 bids for every major expenditure over $1000.00. While price
is very important, it isn’t the only factor worth considering (but most of the time it is). Quality, service, reliability and the terms and

conditions of the proposed deal may also affect the final decision. Please do not hesitate to contact the Purchasing team if you have
any questions regarding how to procure equipment or services.

Retaining Records 1t’s important that we keep records for an appropriate length of time. The New Age Record Retention Policy
suggests minimum record retention periods for certain types of records. These are great guidelines, but keep in mind that legal
requirements, accounting rules and other external sources sometimes specify longer retention periods for certain types of records,
and those control where applicable. In addition, if asked by Finance, Legal or HR to retain records relevant to a litigation, audit or
investigation, do so until Legal tells you retention is no longer necessary.

VII. Obey the Law
“Embody integrity in all we do, be direct and honest and forthright. Never be content with the half-truth when the whole can won.”

New Age takes its responsibilities to comply with laws and regulations very seriously and each of us is expected to comply with
applicable legal requirements and prohibitions. While it’s impossible for anyone to know all aspects of every applicable law, you
should understand the major laws and regulations that apply to your work.

New Age is committed to competing honorably and with character, but with unrelenting aggressiveness.

Insider Trading Laws There are specific windows when associates are allowed to trade in NBEV stock. Any use of nonpublic
information to buy or sell stock, or to pass it along to others so that they may do so, could constitute insider trading. Insider trading
not only violates this Code, it violates the law. Don’t do it and ensure that you are only trading during non-blackout windows.
Choose the harder right.
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Anti-Bribery Laws Like all businesses, New Age is subject to lots of laws, both U.S. and non-U.S., that prohibit bribery in virtually
every kind. The rule for us at New Age is simple — don’t bribe anybody, anytime, for any reason. You should be careful when you
give gifts and pay for meals (although we never want to do or pay for these things anyway), entertainment or other on behalf of New
Age. We want to avoid the possibility that the gift, entertainment or other could be perceived as a bribe. Several laws around the
world, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the UK Bribery Act, specifically prohibit offering or giving anything of
value to government officials to influence official action or to secure an improper advantage. This not only includes traditional gifts,
but also things like meals, travel, political or charitable contributions and job offers for government officials’ relatives. The U.S. also

has strict rules that severely limit the ability of a company or its associates to give gifts and business courtesies to a U.S. government
official and also limit the official’s ability to accept such gifts.

VIII. Summary
“Be purpose driven...and change the world. We can all be proud of our Company and he difference we will make in the world.

It’s impossible to spell out every possible ethical scenario we might face that might not be explicit in the Code. Consequently, we
must rely on the choosing the harder right principle, our values, and on one another’s good judgment to uphold a high standard of
integrity for our Company and ourselves. We expect all New Agers to be guided by both the letter and the spirit of this Code.
Sometimes, identifying the right thing to do isn’t an easy call, and sometimes it's a harder choice than an apparent easier or faster
wrong. If you aren’t sure, don’t be afraid to ask And remember... choose the harder right versus, to keep the identity of New Age
untarnished and unsullied, to rise above the common level of man, and to create our Company that we can all be proud of, own, and
be part of as we work together to change the world by providing consumers healthier alternatives.




Exhibit 21.1

We have three wholly-owned subsidiaries, NABC, Inc., NABC Properties, LLC (NABC Properties”), and New Age Health Sciences. NABC, Inc. is our Colorado-
based operating company that consolidates performance and financial results of our divisions. NABC Properties incorporates all our buildings and warehouses, and
New Age Health Sciences includes all our patents, and the operating performance in the medical and hospital channels.
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14 OR 15D-14 OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Brent Willis, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of New Age Beverages Corp. ;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: April 2018

/s/ Brent Willis

Brent Willis

Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14 OR 15D-14 OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Chuck Ence, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of New Age Beverages Corp. ;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: April 2018

/s/ Chuck Ence

Chuck Ence
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of New Age Beverages Corp. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), the undersigned officers of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of our knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company, as of, and
for the periods presented in the Report.

Date: April 2018
/s/ Brent Willis
Brent Willis
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Chuck Ence
Chuck Ence

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)




